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If BRAC is to become a relevant organisation, we
must strive to continuously find solutions to new
social challenges of a society. We must reach out first
to those who need the most. We must continue to
fight the root causes of inequality - be it economic or
gender-based discrimination.

Sir Fazle Hasan Abed
Founder, BRAC
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CHAIRPERSON’S FOREWORD

CONTINUING A MISSION

OF COMMITMENT,
RELEVANCE AND
RESULTS

As BRAC crosses the 50 year landmark, the foundational
resource to drive its future journeys remains the same - a
sense of mission that was both the initial spark forged in
the cyclone-devastated Bhola in 1970, and a recurring
thread in BRAC’s subsequent journeys.

Technocratic discourse of development often misses
the fundamental significance of this key ingredient. The
sense of commitment is why we are in the development
work in the first place. Even in the closing months of

his life, Abed bhai’s focus was indeed on BRAC, the
institution, but it was even more so on reinforcing the
sense of mission that gave meaning to the institution.

In the preceding 40 years, BRAC stamped its footprints
in multiple areas. These were not random choices. Abed
bhai always gave great importance to listening to the
field. The logic was fundamental: if your conversations
are not with those whose lives you are trying to improve,
how will you know where and how best to focus your
attention and energy?

Anti-diarrhoeal innovation and immunisation in the 1980s
were goals in their own rights, but these upended the
reasoning heard from rural women: that they went for
six or seven children in the expectation that at least a
few would survive. The decline in child-bearing burden
for women set the stage for their own opportunities to
engage in economic roles, boosting the potential for
women’s empowerment.

In the 1990s when the state pushed for compulsory
primary education, village-level discussions revealed that
formal education was inaccessible for children living in
poverty. This is where BRAC triggered a new frontier of
non-formal education.

Abed bhai was an attentive listener not only to the field
but also to new research. He looked both inside BRAC
and outside for insights. On multiple occasions, Abed
bhai told me how he picked up useful insights from the
poverty research | was leading in the 1990s, to open
new programme fronts on extreme poverty. These were

designed to reach people who were being bypassed by
microcredit, and people who had graduated from poverty
but could not access institutional finance. Under his
guidance and the dedicated efforts of BRAC’s staff, the
Ultra-Poor Graduation programme and BRAC Bank have
gone on to become signature achievements addressing
these two critical groups. BRAC's foray into social
enterprises, too, emerged from the intense interactions
with rural artisans who had skills but little access to
remunerative markets.

As we cross the 50 year milestone, the urgency to remain
relevant to the priorities of people who are the furthest
behind in today’s circumstances is as compelling as ever.
New challenges - and opportunities - loom. Urbanisation.
Climate change. Youth. Agriculture.

| am sure other challenges will manifest themselves.
Before his passing, Abed bhai pointed towards an
emerging challenge reinforced by the pandemic - mental
health. How perceptive Abed bhai was.

If commitment and relevance have been two of BRAC'’s
foundational resources, the third in my view is the
concern for worthy results. The sense of mission that
Abed bhai ignited is not merely about declarative
intentions. BRAC’s focus has consistently been on
generating beneficial, measurable and sustainable
outcomes for the millions of people BRAC works with.

Hold on to the sense of mission. Prioritise listening to
the field. Be concerned about impact and results. The
challenge of changing the fate of millions of vulnerable
people is nowhere near the end.

DR HOSSAIN ZILLUR RAHMAN

Chairperson
BRAC

ANNUAL REPORT 2021 | 3



LETTER FROM THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Bangladesh turns 50 this year. It’s been half a century
of hope, resilience and hard work. The country has
seen tremendous progress - spearheaded not just

by the country’s leaders, but by the lesser-known
contributors - women, the farmers and the workers in
the garment sector. The story of the rise of Bangladesh
is the story of its people.

[t goes without saying that BRAC’s genesis is
deeply rooted in Bangladesh’s independence. As
BRAC celebrates its 50th, we are reflective of 50
years of working towards everyone having the same
opportunity to realise their potential. There is a lot to
celebrate from the past but many challenges loom
large ahead.

Two years of COVID-19 set back years of progress
made in addressing systemic inequalities. Access to
basic education, healthcare and other services has
improved, but people continue to struggle to break out
of intergenerational poverty. Education is often unable
to provide employable skills to graduates. Money spent
on healthcare is not able to provide quality treatment,
and families are being pushed into poverty because

of high out-of-pocket expenses. The increasing
impacts of climate change are uprooting lives, land
and livelihoods, causing large scale displacement

and deepening poverty. Gender equality remains an
unfinished agenda.

The last five decades have been transformative
in many ways - women have come out of their
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WE HAVE NEVER
FACED BIGGER
CHALLENGES,
BUT WE HAVE
NEVER BEEN
MORE READY

homes, got themselves educated and joined the
workforce in huge numbers, but some stories have
not changed. The woman who leaves an abusive
marriage with responsibility for all the children and no
legal protection; the woman whose husband has a
premature stroke and who is left with the entire liability
for the family; the young girl who is raped and waits for
years for justice to be dealt to the perpetrator, knowing
it will likely never happen.

“I have seen many defeated men but | have never seen
a defeated woman”, said our founder once. These
women are also not defeated. They just need that extra
skill and confidence that someone is there rooting

for them. Someone telling them - “Apa, apni parben”
(sister, you can do this)! That’s where the BRAC apas
and bhais came in with such effectiveness, providing
the tools people need to turn their lives around.

Continuing the upward trajectory of social development
will require holistic efforts, strong partnerships and
agile programming. We will need to listen even closer
to what is happening on the ground, supporting people
and communities as they go ahead, organise and
make change - the BRAC way.

The last 50 years of work has positioned us well for the
future. New programmes and pilots in early childhood
development, skills and youth employment are gaining
worldwide attention. Innovative financing mechanisms
are being developed for a holistic approach to climate
change adaptation. Graduation programming is being



contextualised to respond to climate change, urban
poverty and disability.

BRAC’s work is evolving to adapt to emerging social
challenges, such as embedding mental health screening
and referral into primary healthcare, harnessing the
power of community to accelerate education and
programming in the humanitarian-development nexus to
respond to protracted crises.

We still have a long way to go to establish a just and
equal society where everyone can realise their full
potential. It will take all of us to get there, more so than

ever in this era of rapid change. BRAC will not deviate
from this journey. We have half a century of insights
now, and we will be doubling down on our efforts. We
have never faced bigger challenges, but we have never
been more ready.

ASIF SALEH

Executive Director
BRAC
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LETTER FROM THE MANAGING DIRECTOR

Bangladesh’s story is a story of investing in human
potential. One of the world’s poorest nations at
birth and extremely vulnerable to natural disasters,
Bangladesh has managed to outperform its
neighbours in many socioeconomic indicators by
harnessing people power.

A key reason for this is the symbiotic relationship
between the government, private sector and non-
government organisations. As one of those non-
government organisations, BRAC has grown up
with Bangladesh, and as we reflect on Bangladesh’s
50th this year, we look forward to BRAC’s 50th in
the coming year.

BRAC has played a role in much of Bangladesh’s
social development, particularly in fields such as
education, health, poverty reduction, child and
maternal mortality and women’s economic and
social empowerment. BRAC’s social enterprises
have also played a significant role in many sectors of
Bangladesh’s economy.

BRAC's approach to tackling the country’s social
challenges has always combined development
programming with enterprise models. By the time
social enterprises started to get global recognition,
many of BRAC’s social enterprises were well-
established leaders in their respective markets.

BRAC's sericulture project supported women living
in rural areas to produce high quality silk from

the 1970s. This was followed by other traditional
craft products, particularly those disappearing
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SOCIAL
ENTERPRISES:
ENSURING
EVERYONE IN
BANGLADESH
CAN SHARE IN
THE NATION’S
PROSPERITY

from production such as nakshikatha (intricate
embroidered patterns weaved on cotton depicting
the stories of women'’s lives). Operations particularly
focused on areas with few livelihood opportunities.
Aarong was established to create market linkages
to sell these products. In the years following, Aarong
has become the country’s biggest lifestyle brand,
playing a key role in bringing craft into mainstream
fashion, attracting consumer interest towards
locally-made products and bringing Bangladesh'’s
rich craft heritage to the world - all while supporting
over 65,000 artisans.

Bangladesh quadrupled food production in the last
five decades, to the point where it is now close to
self-sufficient. BRAC’s social enterprises played an
important part in this.

Starting in 1972, BRAC has ensured farmers have
access to quality agricultural inputs, technical
advice and support, soil testing facilities and
sustainable production technologies. In addition,
since 1996 it has developed, produced and
marketed high-yielding hybrid varieties of rice,
maize, potato and vegetables. BRAC Seed and
Agro is the largest private sector seed producer
in the country, and 2 million farmers now grow



220,000 hectares of crops using BRAC’s seeds.
BRAC'’s cold storage enterprise further supports
potato farmers with storage facilities, to ensure
steady, year-round potato supply.

BRAC’s social enterprises played a pioneering role in
introducing the poultry and feed industries. Millions
of women joined BRAC’s poultry programme, while
millions more started their own poultry enterprises
at home through BRAC’s supply of day-old chicks
across the country. BRAC Feed was quickly started,
to produce millions of tonnes of poultry feed to
support this. Broader than these contributions,
however, was the development of industries in these
two sectors - in 1984 there was only one small
government hatchery and in 1994 there were no
feed mills. Just a few decades later, Bangladesh
has over 80 feed mills and over 130 commercial
hatcheries.

BRAC'’s social enterprises also helped to grow
the fisheries and dairy industries. BRAC Fisheries
equipped and supported people to engage

in aquaculture and harness the potential of
Bangladesh’s ponds for commercial fish farming,
by ensuring access to quality fish spawn in rural
areas. BRAC Fisheries is now the market leader for
all of the products it offers, as well as the leading
wholesale fish food supplier in regional markets.
When dairy farmers, who often purchased cows
through microfinance loans, faced the challenge
of keeping their milk fresh until they could get it to
market - and struggled to get decent prices for it
even when they did get it to market, BRAC Dairy
was created. Now processing 140,000 litres of
milk per day from 50,000 farmers, it has grown to
be the country’s third largest milk processor, with
operations spanning the entire dairy value chain.

BRAC Artificial Insemination, which now covers
33% of the Al market, ensures 850,000 farmers
have access to high-quality cattle breeds and trains
farmers on caring for the general health of their
COWS.

As Bangladesh propels itself to middle-income
status, the significant contribution social enterprises
have made to development, and their potential

to contribute to future development, cannot be
overlooked. Traditional grant-based models of
development will need to evolve into a sustainable
mode of service delivery, and, from BRAC, there
will be a strengthened focus on social enterprises
to address new and evolving challenges in sectors
such as health, environment, education and skills.
As the climate changes, social enterprises will also
have a role to play in supporting people to transition
to climate-resilient livelihoods.

Bangladesh is well past the war-torn struggles

of 1971. It is one of the world’s fastest growing
economies and aspiring to attain middle-income
status in the coming decade. Social enterprises
can play a key role in enabling sustainable growth,
and ensuring that everyone in Bangladesh is able to
share in the nation’s prosperity.

Jamara. Aoedl

TAMARA HASAN ABED

Managing Director
Enterprises, BRAC
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€, BUILDING A
WORLD WE WANT

The idea behind BRAC is to change systems of inequity. We act as a catalyst, creating
platforms for people to realise their potential. We were born in Bangladesh and are
almost self-sustainable in Bangladesh through our own network of social enterprises
and investments. We now operate in 10 countries across Asia and Africa.

SOCIAL DEVELOPMENT
ﬁﬂl“ Facilitating social transformation through eight
programmatic priorities:

Eliminating extreme poverty, expanding financial
choices, employable skills for decent work,
climate change and emergencies, gender
equality, universal healthcare, pro-poor

urban development, investing in the next
generation.

HUMANITARIAN
RESPONSE

Responding to natural and manmade
disasters across the country and providing
comprehensive services to Rohingya and
host communities in Cox’s Bazar.

SOCIAL ENTERPRISES

Solutions for social challenges and surplus for
greater impact: Initiatives that engage individuals,
micro and small enterprises as suppliers,
producers, and consumers.
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INVESTMENTS

Socially responsible companies that assist us in our
mission. Our network of investments helps us strive
towards the goal of self-sustainability.

BRAC UNIVERSITY

@ Creating a functional elite responsive to the needs of

the whole of society. This includes providing the tools
required in health, education, governance, and business
to change systems of inequity that keep people trapped
in poverty and discrimination.

STICHTING BRAC INTERNATIONAL

Set up as a non-profit foundation in the Netherlands
to govern and manage all BRAC entities outside
Bangladesh, except for our affiliates. The entities
are legally registered with relevant authorities in
compliance with all applicable legal and regulatory
requirements.

Q. 9 AFFILIATES

o
N4 BRAC USA

The North American affiliate of BRAC. BRAC USA provides
comprehensive support to BRAC around the world by
raising awareness about its work and mobilising resources
to strengthen programmes.

BRAC UK

The European affiliate of BRAC. BRAC UK works to raise
resources for BRAC programmes in Africa and Asia by
developing partnerships with local and global organisations,
donor agencies, academic and research institutions, and
governments.
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VISION, MISSION AND VALUES
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VISION

A world free from all forms of exploitation and discrimination where
everyone has the opportunity to realise their potential.

MISSION

Our mission is to empower people and communities in situations of
poverty, illiteracy, disease, and social injustice. Our interventions aim
to achieve large scale, positive changes through economic and social
programmes that enable men and women to realise their potential.

VALUES
ntegrity
novation
Clusiveness
fectiveness




Safeguarding practices have
been embedded in BRAC’s
initiatives since the start of the
organisation. In 2019, a journey
began to further strengthen the
practices, by incorporating its
safeguarding standards across
different organisational and
programmatic aspects. This was
in accordance with the six broad
pillars of the BRAC Safeguarding
Framework: safe governance, safe
people practices, safe partnering,
safe programming, safe risk
management, and safe reporting.

BRAC now has safeguarding

in its overarching policies,
guidelines, ongoing training

and awareness initiatives,

safe recruitment policy and
systematic safe people practices,
programme design checkilist,
safeguarding risk assessment
and mitigation process, due
diligence assessment of
partners - which are all effectively
embedded in programmes and
departments. Most importantly,
a robust reporting and response
mechanism, including a 24/7
helpline centre, is now actively
functioning.

The current focus is on
decentralising the safeguarding
responsibilities in the field level,
by creating a group of ‘Shurokhha
Bondhu’ (selected individuals
who will drive safeguarding
principles in their respective
programmes, departments and
social enterprises) in the district
levels. Alongside, strengthening
community safeguarding

SAFEGUARDING IN BRAG
AND BEYOND: ‘SHONGJOG’

awareness is a major target for
2022, with the aim to improve
standards of safeguarding
practices and behaviours, and
inform individuals on the reporting
and response mechanisms.

In the safeguarding complaint

or case management process,

it is crucial to respond to the
complainant or survivor. BRAC has
been practising a survivor-centric
approach and maintaining gender-
based violence case management
standards for addressing any
safeguarding incident. To ensure
that survivors receive necessary
support, BRAC is going to
introduce a ‘referral linkage’
support for survivors.

Using a census method, BRAC has
conducted local service mapping
to collect information on all the
necessary services with regards to
safeguarding issues. This mapping
system has now been included

in an app named ‘Shongjog’
(meaning ‘connectivity’), which is
an open resource for all.

R

&
SHONGJOG

The Shongjog app includes
medical or health-related services,
legal services, psychosocial
services, safe shelter homes,
information of police stations,
among other services.

Shongjog has been created

to bridge the gap between
survivors and service providers,
by connecting survivors to
information and services designed
to assist them in recovering from
their traumatic experiences.

[t consists of consolidated
information and referral pathways
across 61 districts and 435
upazilas. The database is
available for everyone to use on
their own or on behalf of someone
else they want to support. The
app has a crowd-sourcing option,
for suggestions on relevant service
information to be included or
updated, as necessary.

Way forward

Shongjog will help establish

a more efficient reporting and
response mechanism in terms of
referral linkage between service
providers and service seekers.

More initiatives will be taken to
strengthen the necessary referral
linkages, creating connectivity and
cooperation among the service
providers to ensure rapid and
quality support.

We hope that these collective
efforts will enable safeguarding
practices, establish a culture of
mutual respect and care, and
ensure a safe environment for all.
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BRAC ACROSS THE WORLD

USA
Initiated: 2007

An independent charity to UK
raise profile and funds for

Initiated: 2006
BRAC globall
g / An independent charity to raise profile and

funds for BRAC globally

SIERRA LEONE
Initiated: 2008
AFSL, Health, MF, YE

RWANDA
Initiated: 2018
MF

LIBERIA

Initiated: 2008 ‘
SOUTH SUDAN AFSL, Education, Health
Initiated: 2007 MF, UPG, YE UGANDA
AFSL,YE Initiated: 2006
ECD, Education, EPRP, Health,
MF, UPG, YE
AFSL: Agriculture, Food Security and Livelihood GJD: Gender Justice and Diversity SDP: Skills Development Programme
BEP: BRAC Education Programme HNPP: Health, Nutrition and Population Programme UDP: Urban Development Programme
BYP: BRAC Youth Platform HCMP: Humanitarian Crisis Management Programme Uni: University
CC: Climate Change IDP: Integrated Development Programme WASH: Water, Sanitation and Hygiene
DRMP: Disaster Risk Management Programme MF: Microfinance UPG: Ultra—Poor Graduation
ECD: Early Childhood Development SE: Social Enterprises UPGI: Ultra—Poor Graduation Initiative
EPRP: Emergency Preparedness and Response Programme SELP: Social Empowerment and Legal Protection YE: Youth Empowerment
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NETHERLANDS

Initiated: 2009

Stichting BRAC International
registered as a foundation

AFGHANISTAN
Initiated: 2002
Education, Health, UPG

MYANMAR
Initiated: 2013
AFSL, MF

BANGLADESH

Initiated: 1972

‘ BEP, BYP, CC, DRMP, GJD, HNPP,
IDP, MF, MG, SDP, SE, SELP,

UDP, Uni, UPG, WASH, HCMP

e PHILIPPINES
" Initiated: 2012

Education, UPGI

TANZANIA
Initiated: 2006
AFSL, ECD, MF, YE

KENYA
Initiated: 2019
Africa Regional Office
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From Bangladesh to the world

DOING DEVELOPMENT
DIFFERENTLY



25 southern development
approaches from BRAC

Uniting people for collective power

Unlocking the agency of people in
their own communities

Remote communities face common challenges
globally - lack of access to information, services and
opportunities, unreliable communication and limited
market linkage.

In 1977, BRAC began working with communities

in rural areas across Bangladesh to form village
development organisations. These organisations are
governed by people from the community and act as

a single point for information and services. Members
hold regular meetings, receive training on social issues
and come up with collective solutions. Members save
money collectively, enabling members to take out
collateral-free loans.

The organisations are an engine for rural development,
increasing solidarity and uniting people to have the
power to collectively tackle challenges, improving
access 1o services and generating employment by
increasing the amount of money circulating in the
community.

The model has been scaled up in six countries.

Globally, there is a shortage of professionals,
especially in critical roles like psychologists - and
particularly in remote areas. People can be brought

in from cities, but this is an expensive, short-term
solution that requires a lot of time before professionals
understand the community.

To tackle this, BRAC trains hundreds of thousands of
people, mostly women, to work as para-professionals.
These people, in roles like para-counsellors, legal

aid providers and veterinarians, take BRAC’s work to
the last mile in their own communities. They deliver
knowledge, offer products and services, and link
people with other providers.

It's an affordable long-term solution with significant
added benefits - para-professionals have lived
experience of the challenges faced in their
communities, and ownership of solutions.

The model has been scaled up in ten countries.
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Bringing health to every household Looking beyond microfinance to support people
to transform their lives

Bangladesh’s healthcare landscape in the 1970s Microfinance provides financial services to people
was stark. One in five children in Bangladesh died who cannot access traditional banks, typically
before their fifth birthday, women had six children because of remoteness, lack of collateral or lack of
on average and adults were expected to live for just service by banks - because loan amounts are small
46 years. and transaction costs are high.

BRAC’s answer was to support the national Microfinance is only part of a solution, however - and
healthcare system with an affordable, community- must be combined with other services for people to
driven healthcare network. Women, trained as improve their lives.

health workers, travelled door-to-door in their own

communities, armed with knowledge, diagnostic The first ‘plus’ is creating markets, so a woman who
tools and referral networks, earning a small profit buys a cow has a way to sell the milk it produces.
from Se”ing productsl The network was Supported The second 'plus’ is prOViding services like education
by specialists, such as midwives, and a range of and healthcare, to support her to build her resilience
facilities, such as maternity clinics. and drive intergenerational change.

Today, 97% of children live to the age of five, The model has been scaled up in seven countries.

women have two children on average and adults
are expected to live for 72 years.

The model has been scaled up in six countries.
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Putting girls back in charge of
their lives

Reimagining education for
millions of children

Investing in women as
catalysts of change

Every second girl in Bangladesh is
married before her 18th birthday,
putting her at risk of never being
able to realise her full potential.

In the early 1990s, safe spaces for
girls were scarce, so classrooms
transformed into after-school
clubs, where girls, especially those
who dropped out of school, could
continue learning.

9,000 kishori (adolescent girl) clubs
across Bangladesh provided over
300,000 girls with the space to be
themselves, and work on becoming
whatever they wanted to be.

Clubs were walking distance

from girls’ homes, and run by
trained mentors - women from the
community - who taught life skills,
sports and the arts, and encouraged
girls to read.

These clubs produced women who
went on to compete internationally,
and the model has been adapted in
six countries.

Two out of five children of primary
school age in Bangladesh were not
in school in the early 1980s. Of those
enrolled, half dropped out.

Schools were far away, and often
interfered with vital chores or harvest
seasons. Male teachers made
parents with young daughters worry.

BRAC’s one-room school model
reimagined education, addressing
the reasons students dropped

out. Schools were brought to
students, through renting rooms

in communities. School was free,
materials were provided and learning
was joyful, with no homework and
flexible class times. Classes were
run in cohorts; the teacher was a
woman recruited and trained from
the same community, who worked
with the same group of students for
all their classes.

The model brought education to 15
million students, was adopted by
the government and scaled up in six
countries.

When women have better access
to basic services, the effects go far
beyond a single individual.

Women make better lives for
themselves, and then multiply that
impact by improving the lives of
their families, the people around
them and, eventually, changing the
trajectories of whole communities.

Women equally being involved in
decision-making results in more
cohesive, peaceful communities.
The challenge is that their voices

- particularly those living in poverty -
often go unheard.

BRAC works to shift attitudes and
practices to expand opportunities
available to women, develop

and mainstream approaches to
strengthen confidence and skills,
and build enabling environments.

Women are the backbone of all
BRAC’s programming and at the
centre of every intervention, in roles
like para-professionals, programme
participants, clients, artisans and
entrepreneurs.

This approach is adopted in ten
countries.
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Finance to match harvesting
seasons

Investing in the power of hope

Harnessing the power of play
for learning and healing

Sharecropping is cultivating crops
on land belonging to other people.
It is often done by farmers who do
not own land, who then share the
harvest with the landowner.

Sharecroppers need capital at
the start of the season. They

lack collateral, so banks won’t
lend. Microfinance has monthly
repayments, and there is no profit
until harvest. Their only choice is
mahajans - informal lenders - who
charge high interest, demand full

repayment and some of the harvest.

One bad harvest can mean years of
debt.

With support from the central bank,
BRAC launched the first collateral-
free loan, with 10% annual interest,
in 2009. One-third of the loan is
repaid initially. The remaining two-
thirds are repaid after two harvest
seasons. If a harvest fails, there is
flexibility to recover.

18 | ANNUAL REPORT 2021

Extreme poverty is more than a lack
of finances. Over time, it turns into a
lack of hope, and a lack of belief in
one’s agency and ability to change
their own life.

BRAC introduced the Graduation
approach in 2002, when it was
realised that existing programming
was not reaching people in extreme
poverty.

Graduation is now a globally
recognised approach to equip
people to move out of extreme
poverty towards self-sufficiency. It is
a time-bound pathway comprising
income generation, social protection,
financial support and social
empowerment - with a key focus on
supporting people to rebuild hope.

93% of graduates in Bangladesh
continue to benefit seven years after
graduating, and 14 million people
have graduated through adapting
the approach in 50 countries.

90% of brain development occurs
during the first five years of life.
Focusing on the early years is
essential to realising potential later
in life.

BRAC Play Labs harness the power
of play to build wellbeing, resilience
and positivity in children aged 3-5
years.

Research shows Play Labs achieve
the greatest challenge in early
childhood development - over two
years, they reduce performance
gaps to the point where the least
privileged children can enter
kindergarten as well-prepared as the
most privileged.

Play Labs operate across
Bangladesh, Uganda and Tanzania,
and have been adapted to create
BRAC Humanitarian Play Labs,
which operate in the Rohingya
camps in Bangladesh, and the Rhino
refugee camp in Uganda.



Modernising tradition to meet
a growing skill gap

A community-based
approach to achieve zero
open defecation

Frontline insights
combined with
research

Two out of five people aged 15-24 in
Bangladesh are not in employment,
education or formal training.

To bridge this gap, BRAC connects
young people who have dropped out
of school with master craftspeople.
They are paid a stipend and

work in pairs with the master
craftsperson in their workshop for
six months through an on-the-job
apprenticeship model. Apprentices
learn one of 25 trades, mapped

to local demand, plus soft skills to
enhance employability.

Master craftspeople also receive
stipends, and training on topics like
gender rights, disability inclusion and
occupational health.

30,000 apprentices have graduated
(59% women and 10% persons with
disabilities and transgender). Among
them, early marriage has reduced by
62% and household incomes have
increased six-fold. 95% of graduates
continue working or set up their own
businesses.

1.6 million people die every year
globally because of poor hygiene
and sanitation.

Bangladesh has made remarkable
progress in sanitation - open
defecation has reduced from 34%
to almost zero over the past two
decades.

A key to this success was reducing
the gap between hygiene knowledge
and practice. The government
launched a national campaign to

do this and BRAC supported the
efforts by taking the campaign

to the community level, through
community mobilisation and
forming community-level WASH
committees. This was supported by
activating market forces - starting
rural sanitation centres which sold
sanitary construction materials

and supporting people to become
sanitation entrepreneurs.

The work grew to become the
largest WASH programme anywhere
managed by an NGO and 39 million
people received access to hygienic
sanitation.

BRAC staff and volunteers are from
the same communities they work
with, and always connected to the
realities on the ground. The frontline
insights from this lived experience
are the most important evidence.

Supporting this, is rigorous
monitoring, evaluation and research.
The Research and Evaluation
Division was established just three
years after inception - in 1975 - and
evolved as BRAC grew, both to
ensure work is evidence-driven and
that learning is captured to share
nationally and globally. This focus on
research and learning has spawned
many initiatives, including the
establishment of BRAC University.

Work and evidence run parallel -
evidence informs BRAC’s work, and
the work informs the areas in which
insights and research are needed.
Work takes into account best
practices from the globe, as well as
increasingly informing the globe of
best practices from the south.
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Sustainable impact through
entrepreneurial programming

Creating value chains
to support agricultural
production

A livelihood platform
for artisans

BRAC combines development
thinking with market forces.

Too often business looks at the base
of the pyramid and sees millions of
potential consumers. In doing this, it
misses out on the opportunity to tap
into their creativity, engage them in
productive livelihoods, and link them
to markets — or to create new ones.

BRAC sees people in poverty as
active contributors to economic
growth and equips people across
all its work to emerge as micro-
entrepreneurs, artisans and social
service providers.

This entrepreneurial programming
approach has led to sustainability

of impact, as people become self-
reliant, and the creation of multiple
social enterprises. In Bangladesh,
Aarong Dairy, for example, links
farmers who often have just three
cows each to otherwise inaccessible
markets; it now makes up one-third
of the nation’s dairy market.
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Bangladesh needed to produce
three million more metric tonnes of
food in 1972. Widespread hunger
was causing chronic malnutrition,
leading to child stunting and poor
maternal and child health.

BRAC’s approach was multi-
pronged - broadening awareness
about the importance of nutrition,
expanding access to microfinance
in rural areas, educating people

on leasing land for farming, and
ensuring people had access to high
quality inputs and market linkages
so they could make a livelihood from
farming.

To support this, work was then
done at the macro level - research
and development, participatory
demonstration, extension services,
technology innovation and building
value chains to make markets
work for people living in poverty,
which spawned a network of social
enterprises.

The model has been adapted in six
countries.

Bangladesh is a country of rich craft
traditions. For years it produced the
finest muslin in the world - a fabric
so light it was called ‘woven air’.

By the early 20th century, however,
many craft traditions had been lost
- and more were disappearing every
year.

Artisans sold their crafts through
buyers who took most of the profit.
Retailers were few and scattered,
and only paid when products sold,
meaning artisans - mostly women
living in poverty in rural areas - could
wait months to be paid.

Aarong was started to make craft
into a viable livelihood, and, through
that, preserve heritage. Artisans
were paid when products were
made. While importing goods rose
in popularity, Aarong grew demand
for local fashion, home and gift
products, fusing tradition with
modern designs.

Decades later, Bangladesh’s
crafts are world heritage listed and
demanded globally.



An approach for protracted
displacement

Solutions that work because
they are from the ground

Community-led
housing

The nature of crises is changing
globally, with climate change

and conflict increasingly leading

to protracted displacement. To
respond, we must merge short-term
humanitarian response and long-
term development approaches.

Bangladesh welcomed almost one
million Rohingya fleeing violence

in Myanmar in 2017. BRAC is the
biggest civil society responder,
providing multi-faceted, holistic
services to both Rohingya and host
communities.

Urgent humanitarian needs such

as shelter, healthcare and hygiene
were the initial focus. As the crisis
prolonged, the focus shifted from
mass scale short-term relief to
localised, targeted, long-term
approaches to equip people to work
towards self-reliance. Five years on,
while still responding to incidents
like natural disasters, BRAC’s work
includes development approaches to
meet needs like livelihoods, mental
health and social cohesion.

In the early 1980s, poultry farmers
in remote areas needed vaccines for
their chickens, and those vaccines
needed to be kept cold.

Refrigeration was expensive and
rarely available. Bananas, however,
weren’t.

They were tiny, free, available
everywhere and the flesh was just
cool enough - and provided an
added benefit of cushioning against
breakage. Thousands of farmers
were saved from catastrophic
losses.

Our pragmatic solutions come from
deeply understanding the unique
challenges that every community
faces, through the lived experiences
of our staff who are from the same
communities.

‘Banana immunisation’ is just one
example.

BRAC has established a southern
approach of development - the
work starts in communities, with the
belief that the people closest to the
challenges are the closest to the
solutions.

Bangladesh is among the most
densely populated countries in the
world. In 1974, 8% of the population
lived in urban areas. Today that

is 40% of the population, and it is
expected to reach 50% by 2050.

33% of the people in urban areas live
in makeshift shelters. Safe homes
are crucial to escaping poverty, but
people do not have the capital to
invest in them.

To break this cycle, BRAC
introduced a community-led housing
financing model. Community leaders
mobilise a capital fund from member
contributions and external grants to
provide their members with loans to
build houses, starting with people

in the most need. Communities
manage the funds, and houses are
constructed with local labour, to
local conditions, with local materials,
using climate-resilient designs - so
they are affordable, and built to last.
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Can a tiger build a house?

Data-driven
decision-making

Bringing books to everyone

llliteracy was a significant challenge
among adults in Bangladesh in
1972. This was an important factor
in terms of vulnerability - an inability
to read could result in being tricked
into selling an asset at a low price
or signing a contract without
understanding it.

BRAC’s functional education
programme began in 1973, with

a curriculum comprising literacy,
numeracy and life skills. It also
focused on building confidence -
facilitators encouraged people to
analyse their environment, self-
reflect and focus on their abilities.
One of the early realisations in a
class was that, given access to the
resources, they could all build a
house - giving them an ability that
even the famed Royal Bengal tigers
didn’t have.

22 | ANNUAL REPORT 2021

BRAC started scaling up

its operations early on, and
technology quickly became a
powerful enabling force - to

ensure efficiency, overcome the
challenges of distance, reduce time
in administrative duties and inform
decision-making.

The BRAC Computer Centre

was established in 1985, and the
automation of key data processing
functions significantly improved the
efficiency, transparency and reliability
of BRAC’s early development
initiatives.

With thousands of employees
working with millions of people in
remote areas, technology adoption
continued until a strategic decision
was taken to digitise all operations
in 2016. This produced significant
benefits during COVID-19, enabling
data-driven decision-making at all
levels inside BRAC and nationally,
and informing the creation of
telehealth, slum mapping and
relief distribution apps, and real-
time, data-informed awareness
campaigns.

Three million people have engaged
in reading through BRAC’s libraries
across Bangladesh.

Gonokendro (community libraries)
were a bridge to the rest of the world
for many remote villages for years.
They burst with books, magazines
and films, and were managed by
locally-recruited librarians. These
self-financed spaces offered training,
encouraged cultural activities and
explored the arts. They were the
reason many women who did not go
to school would become readers.

BRAC’s mobile libraries were
created to go to those unable to
access the community libraries.
Rickshaws and boats carried a set of
abridged versions of Bengali literary
classics, and would set up outside

a house with a large uthan (yard),
spreading out a large mat for people
to sit on and read.



Community-led
entertainment

Women making
space for themselves
at the table

Bringing classrooms to
where children are

Bengal has always had a love of
performing arts - poetry like the
famed kobi gaan, and narrative folk
music like the catchy panchali and
poter gaan (songs about myths,
performed with painted mats).
Social, political, environmental

and spiritual messaging was often
embedded in performances.

In the 1980s theatre became a tool
for development in Bangladesh.
BRAC followed this trend, using
theatre to create awareness and
generate dialogue on issues in
communities, but with a twist -

the theatre is led entirely by the
community.

Rather than performing pre-
determined shows, each play
explores one theme identified by
people from the community. Instead
of actors, the people on stage have
no prior theatre experience, are
from the community they perform in,
and have lived experience of what
they were performing. All shows are
performed in the local dialect, and
performers receive a stipend.

232,000 of BRAC’s popular theatre
shows have been performed
throughout Bangladesh, attended by
over 77 million people.

Women being equally involved

in decision-making results in
more cohesive, healthy, peaceful
communities.

To accelerate that, BRAC supports
women to organise themselves
through Polli Shomaj (community-
driven women’s networks) in villages
across Bangladesh.

Polli Shomaj members are from alll
walks of life - mothers, students,
local elites. Meetings are informal,
but are the basis of powerful local
action.

Members play active roles to
support their communities across
a wide range of areas - tackling
natural disasters, influencing

local government decisions, and
countering gender-based violence.
Women gain networks, self-belief
and first-hand experience in
influencing the trajectory of their
community.

Research shows that members

are significantly more likely to be
politically active than non-members.
Since 2002, over 9,000 members
have contested local elections, with
almost 3,000 being elected.

Bangladesh is a country of rivers.
Much of the land is wetlands (haors)
that stay submerged under water for
half of the year.

BRAC’s boat schools were
introduced with a simple philosophy:
if children cannot get to schools,
schools will go to them. Painted
bright pink and equipped with solar
panels, the boats function as both
classrooms and school buses,
following a set route to collect
children from their homes and return
them after school.

Boat schools mostly operate in the
wetlands, where primary enrolment
and literacy rates lag far behind
national averages.

Over 14,000 students in
Bangladesh’s remote wetlands
region have accessed education
through boat schools, and the
model has been replicated in the
Philippines.
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2021 AT A GLANCE
IN BANGLADESH

Almost 2 In every 5 people in Bangladesh received
some Kind of support from BRAC

64.6

million people
accessed health and
nutrition services
and received
awareness, of which

3 .6 million

are people with
disabilities

115w

accessed financial services
and awareness

USD 4-5 billion worth of

total loans disbursed, reaching

5_4 million households
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1 in every 3 people
in Bangladesh reached with
awareness on COVID-19
prevention, while

1 in every 8 people
received masks

1 in every 3

pregnant women in
Bangladesh supported
with antenatal care

1 out of every 2 confirmed
malaria patients received treatment

and 400,000 people tested

for malaria in Chittagong Hill Tract
region

3 out of every 5 confirmed
TB patients received treatment

and 2 million symptomatic TB
cases diagnosed and treated

500,000 reople

accessed WASH-related
services

207,360 students

accessed safely—managed
drinking and sanitation facilities
across 300 schools

27%

of Bangladesh’s urban
population living in informal
settlements accessed affordable
housing and community
infrastructure services

860,000 people living in

urban vulnerability supported
with community infrastructure,
housing support and awareness,

of which 17,300 are people

with disabilities



12,290 climate-

vuinerable households
accessed appropriate
adaptive solutions and
awareness to tackle
impacts of climate change,

including 35 persons
with disabilities

42,41 4 people accessed

skills training and decent work

initiatives, including 23,327

women and girls

17,658 young people

supported with improved

access to employability and

entrepreneurship training

200,000 households

accessed enterprise training,
livelihoods interventions,
financial support and
awareness, of which

282 are people with

disabilities

190,000 children

had access to education, including
5,900 rearners with disabilities

Students from BRAC—operated

schools comprise 2 5% of the
enrolled grade 5 primary students

1 n 34 million

households accessed disaster
risk reduction services
and awareness, of which

121,500

are people with disabilities

146,651 nouseholds living

in extreme poverty reached with
productive assets, climate—adaptive
enterprises and loans to recover from
COVID-19 shocks

65,315 households graduated

from extreme poverty, including
2,607 persons with disabilties

2.9 million people engaged in

income generating activities, training,
psychosocial care and awareness on

safe migration

5,297 returnee migrants

accessed psychological, social and

economic reintegration services

usD 3.36 million recovered

for 14,553 survivors of

violence, through alternative

dispute resolution and court cases

1.5 million people accessed
legal support and awareness, of

which 1,023 are people with
disabilities
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DEVELOPMENT PARTNERS

GOVERNMENT ALLIANCES

BRAC has a long history of working in collaboration with the Government of Bangladesh. Our joint effort has
significantly contributed to attaining many of the Millennium Development Goals. Below are the names of
some of the Ministries and government units that we have been closely working with.

The Prime Minister’s Office

Office of the President of Bangladesh
Bangladesh National Parliament

NGO Affairs Bureau

Cabinet Division

Ministry of Labour and Employment
Ministry of Railways

Ministry of Shipping

Ministry of Water Resources

Ministry of Women and Children Affairs
Ministry of Youth and Sports
Economic Relations Division

National Human Rights Commission of

Department of Haor & Wetland Development Board
(under Ministry of Water Resources)

Ministry of Social Welfare
Health Service Division
Bangladesh Police
Bangladesh Bank

Ministry of Education

Ministry of Information

ICT Division

Ministry of Planning

Dhaka North City Corporation
Dhaka South City Corporation
Roads and Highway Department

Bangladesh

STRATEGIC PARTNERS

In partnership with

Australian i

Aid - Canada

Strategic Partnership Arrangement (SPA) is a partnership between BRAC, the Australian Government and
the Canadian Government, based on shared goals, clear results and mutual accountability. BRAC, Australia’s
Department of Foreign Affairs and Trade (DFAT), and Canada’s Department of Foreign Affairs, Trade and
Development (DFATD) have been working together to tackle the key development challenges more effectively,
efficiently, and collaboratively.

The third phase of the SPA spans from 2021-2025 and supports BRAC’s overarching strategy to ensure
economic recovery post-COVID-19, social cohesion of marginalised communities to retain the development
gains achieved to date, and to support accelerated human development with the renewed focus back on
meeting the Sustainable Development Goals with targeted and clustered programming, system strengthening
and new model development. The SPA Partnership will also help BRAC to strengthen its organisational systems
and sustainability, and seek to influence development practices in Bangladesh and globally through shared
learning and advocacy.

Through SPA, BRAC has been able to reduce the transaction costs of aid and facilitate a greater focus on high-
level outcomes rather than inputs. With the provision of core funding, the partnership enables BRAC to develop
programmes to address the changing needs of the people of Bangladesh, build institutional capacity, and
develop a more holistic and integrated response to poverty reduction and inequalities.
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BRAC MANAGEMENT

ASIF SALEH
Executive Director
BRAC

)

SHAMERAN ABED
Executive Director
BRAC International

Jerome Oberreit
Executive Director
BRAC Global

TUSHAR BHOWMIK
Chief Financial Officer
BRAC

ARINJOY DHAR
Senior Director
Microfinance
BRAC

KAM MORSHED

Senior Director

Advocacy, Innovation & Migration
BRAC

MOHAMMAD ANISUR RAHMAN
Senior Director
Enterprises, BRAC

ANNUAL REPORT 2021

MOUTUSHI KABIR

Senior Director

People, Culture and Communications
BRAC

a

TAMARA HASAN ABED
Managing Director
Enterprises, BRAC

MD. AKRAMUL ISLAM
Senior Director
Communicable Diseases
WASH, HCMP and IDP, BRAC



AFM SHAHIDUR RAHMAN AHMED NAJMUL HUSSAIN M MAKBUL HOSSAIN

Director Director Director
Monitoring, Evaluation, Accountability Administration and Road Safety Operations
and Learning, BRAC BRAC BRAC

MAFRUZA KHAN MD LIAKATH ALI DR MORSEDA CHOWDHURY
Director Director Director

Global Resource Mobilisation and Climate Change Health, Nutrition and Population
Partnerships BRAC and BRAC International BRAC

BRAC Urban Development, BRAC

e

NANDA DULAL SAHA NOBONITA CHOWDHURY PALASH KANTI DAS
Director Director Director
Internal Audit Preventing Violence Against Women Ultra—Poor Graduation
BRAC and BRAC International Initiative and Gender Justice & Diversity BRAC

BRAC

L

SAFI RAHMAN KHAN SAIEED BAKTH MOZUMDER MD SAJEDUL HASAN
Director Director Director

Education, Skills Development, and TeaEstates Disaster Risk Management
Migration BRAC BRAC and BRAC International
BRAC
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SHAHRIAR HOQUE SHEELA RUBINA RAHMAN SK JENEFA KHANOM JABBAR

Director Director Director
Technology Legal & Compliance Social Compliance and Safeguarding
BRAC BRAC BRAC

SONIA WALLMAN SYED MAZBAHUL MORSHAD
Director Chief Engineer

Grants Management BRAC

Global Resource Mobilisation and

Partnership(GRP)

BRAC and BRAC International
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BRAC
GENERAL BODY

The General Body is the collective name for the members of the Society registered in Dhaka on 21 March 1972 as the ‘Bangladesh
Rehabilitation Assistance Committee’ under the Societies Registration Act 1860. On 15 June 1992, the name of the Society was changed

to ‘BRAC".

The General Body presently comprises the following 28 members:

Abdul-Muyeed Chowdhury
Shabana Azmi

Syed S Kaiser Kabir
Shafiqul Hassan

Irene Zubaida Khan

Sylvia Borren

Dr Debapriya Bhattacharya
Parveen Mahmud
Advocate Syeda Rizwana Hasan
Adeeb H Khan

Dr Muhammad Musa
Faruque Ahmed

Shib Narayan Kairy
Tamara Hasan Abed

Asif Saleh

Dr Fawzia Nazli Rasheed
Melissa Dawn Parke

Victoria Balyejusa Sekitoleko
Marilou van Golstein Brouwers
Dr Hossain Zillur Rahman
Ameerah Haq

Gregory Chen

Fathima Dada

Simone Sultana

Lord George Mark Malloch—Brown KCMG
Professor Dr M A Sattar Mandal
Dr Fahmida Khatun

Tapan Chowdhury

Under the Rules and Regulations of BRAC, the General Body elects the Governing Body.

At the BRAC Annual General Meeting on 28 June 2021, the General Body adopted BRAC’s audited financial statements for the calendar
year 2020, appointed BRAC’s external auditors for the calendar year 2021 and Financial Years 2021-2022, and elected the members of

the Governing Bodly.
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BRAC

GOVERNING BODY

Dr Hossain Zillur Rahman
Chairperson

Economist and social thinker, Hossain Zillur Rahman is a leading policy
voice of Bangladesh with wide-ranging experiences within and outside

the government. Holding a master’s in economics (Dhaka University) and
PhD in political sociology (Manchester University), Dr Rahman founded the
Dhaka-based think-tank Power and Participation Research Centre (PPRC)
in 1996 and was elected chairperson of BRAC, Bangladesh in 2019. Prior
to founding PPRC, he led the internationally known 62-village Analysis

of Poverty Trends Project at the Bangladesh Institute of Development
Studies (1989-98) and was the lead consultant in drafting the government
of Bangladesh’s poverty reduction strategy in 2004. He was appointed

a member of the Independent South Asian Commission on Poverty
Alleviation (2003-06) and also served on the board of the central bank

of Bangladesh. Dr Rahman has authored influential works in the areas of
poverty, governance, social development and urbanisation and was a key
contributor to the adoption of a national social security strategy (2015).

Dr Rahman served as an advisor (Cabinet Minister) for the ministries of
Education and Commerce in the Caretaker Government of Bangladesh
(2007-08) and was credited with a lead role in the subsequent return of
Bangladesh to electoral democracy. He was awarded the Dr John Meyer
Global Citizenship Award by the Institute for Global Leadership, Tufts
University in 2009. Dr Rahman was one of the three awardees of the Gold
Medal Award 2013 of Rotary International Bangladesh for his services to
humanity.

Adeeb H Khan
Member

Adeeb Hossain Khan qualified as a Chartered Accountant in England in
1991 and has been Senior Partner of Rahman Rahman Hug (Member Firm
of KPMG International) since 2012.

Adv Syeda Rizwana Hasan
Member

Advocate Syeda Rizwana Hasan is an enrolled lawyer with the
Supreme Court of Bangladesh. She is the chief executive of Bangladesh
Environmental Lawyers Association (BELA) which was awarded the
Tang Award from Taiwan for its contribution in the arena of Rule of

Law (2020). Her main focus is to promote environmental justice in
Bangladesh.

Ms Rizwana did her master’s and bachelor’s in law from the University
of Dhaka with distinction. She started her career with BELA in 1993 and
is continuing to work with the same organisation.

Ms Rizwana’s area of work includes vehicular, river and industrial
pollution, ship breaking, grabbing of wetlands, cutting of hills,
unregulated mining, unplanned urbanisation, commercial shrimp
cultivation, deforestation and loss of biodiversity.

Ms Rizwana is a visiting faculty in the University of Asia Pacific, State
University, Eastern University and North South University.

Ms Rizwana is a member of NGOs including RDRS, Friends In Village
Development Bangladesh, Nijera Kori, Association of Land Reforms
and Development, and BRAC. Rizwana serves as a member of various
committees formed by the government on environmental issues.

Ms Rizwana is an amigas (a member of the Environmental Law Alliance
Worldwide) and a member of the Environmental Law Commission of
IUCN. She is a board member of South Asian Network for Development
and Environmental Economics (SANDEE). Her organisation is a
member of the NGO platform on ship breaking, IUCN, South Asian
Watch on Trade, Environment and Economics, and Friends of the Earth
International.

Ms Rizwana is amongst the first five women from South Asia to receive
the ‘Celebrating Womanhood” award (2008) given by the Creative
Statement and South Asia Partnership based in Nepal. She received the
prestigious Goldman Environmental Prize in 2009 for her outstanding
contribution in protecting and conserving the environment of the

country. She has also been named as one of the 40 Environmental
Heroes of the World by TIME magazine. In 2012, Rizwana was awarded
with the Ramon Magsaysay Award.

He has been a Council Member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
Bangladesh (ICAB) since 2013. He was the President of ICAB in 2017. He is
a board member of Metropolitan Chamber of Commerce & Industry (MCCI),
the oldest and one of the most prestigious trade chambers of Bangladesh,
chairing its Taxation Sub-Committee. He is a member of the Executive
Committee of Bangladesh Legal Aid and Services Trust (BLAST).

Ms Rizwana has been awarded with Women of Courage by the US state
department in 2022.

Mr Khan's past experience in directorial roles include Biman Bangladesh
Airlines, the national Flag carrier of Bangladesh, and Electricity Generation
Company of Bangladesh Limited. He frequently speaks at various forums
on matters connected to taxation, corporate governance, and private sector
reform.
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Shafiqul Hassan
Member

HI. 7

Shafiqul Hassan is the managing director of Echo Sourcing Limited UK
and Echotex Limited Bangladesh. Echotex received Bangladesh’s National
Environmental Award, Metropolitan Chamber of Commerce and Industry
Dhaka’s Environmental Award, and J Sainsbury plc’s Corporate Social
Responsibility Award in 2010. Echotex was also awarded Best Clothing
Supplier in 2011 as well as Best Clothing Supplier and Supplier of the Year
in 2012 by J Sainsbury plc. Mr Hassan co-founded a premium clothing label
called Ninety Percent, launched in 2018, that shares ninety percent of its
distributed profits between social and environmental causes, along with
the people who are involved in making the clothes. He is the co-founder of
Children’s Hope, an NGO that works to educate children living in slums in
Dhaka. He obtained his bachelor’s degree from City University, London and
master’s degrees from Aston University, Birmingham, UK.

Dr Fahmida Khatun
Member

Dr Fahmida Khatun is currently the executive director of the Centre for Policy
Dialogue (CPD), a leading think tank in South Asia. She has accomplished

her bachelor’s and master’s in economics from Jahangirnagar University,
Bangladesh. She did another master’s in environmental and natural resource
economics and PhD in economics from the University College London, UK.
She did her post-doctoral research at the Earth Institute, Columbia University,
USA. She was a visiting fellow at Christian Michelsen Institute, Norway; Korea
Institute for Industrial Economics and Trade, South Korea; and Center for Study
of Science, Technology and Policy, India.

Dr Khatun’s areas of interest include macroeconomic policy and management,
climate change and environmental economics, financial sector, international aid
effectiveness, international trade and WTO issues, youth employment, gender
issues, interests of Least Developed Countries, and Sustainable Development
Goals. She has published extensively at home and abroad. She is a columnist
for the Daily Star and contributor for the East Asia Forum.

She was a director of the state-owned Janata Bank Limited during 2008-2011,
and of the SME Foundation of Bangladesh during 2010-2013. She was a
member of the Panel of Economists for the Eight Five Year Plan of Bangladesh
Planning Commission.
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Melissa Parke
Member

Melissa Dawn Parke has over two decades of experience in
international law, politics, sustainable development, humanitarian affairs,
human rights and governance. She served as Australia’s Minister for
International Development and is a former federal member for Fremantle.
Prior to entering the Australian parliament Ms Parke served as an
international lawyer with the United Nations for eight years in Kosovo,
Gaza, New York and Lebanon. Following her retirement from parliament,
she was appointed as an ‘Eminent Expert on Yemen' for the United
Nations Human Rights Council. Ms Parke is an ambassador for the
International Campaign to Abolish Nuclear Weapons, and a member of
the Advisory Council of the Australian Centre for International Justice.
She holds bachelor’s degrees in business (Curtin University) and law
(University of New South Wales), and a master’s degree in public
international law (Murdoch University).

Fathima Dada
Member

Fathima Dada has worked in education throughout her career, as a
teacher, lecturer, university external examiner, children’s author and
textbook author. Her books have sold over a million copies. Ms Dada
has held almost every level of job in the education industry - from
strategy, global product management and marketing, to production

and design, sales and sales strategy in the roles of MD, CEO and
chairperson. She is currently the managing director of Oxford Education
and chairs the Board of Oxford AQA qualifications. She has also

been involved with government and non-governmental work in policy,
curriculum, assessment, qualifications and implementation. She has
served on several ministerial committees and overseen education
reform and policy development in several countries, including working
for UNESCO to support education systems in Mozambique, Malawi and
Zambia. She has been a council member on the Schools and Vocational
Quality Assurance authority in South Africa for 10 years. She helped
lead the transformation to sustainability of the education programme

of BRAC in Bangladesh. Ms Dada is on the Board of Oasis Asset
Management, and has previously been an active Board member to
affordable school chains including Omega (Ghana), Spark (South Africa),
Bridge (Kenya) and Zaya (India).



Dr M A Sattar Mandal
Member

e

Dr M A Sattar Mandal, an agricultural economist, has been involved in
teaching, research and policy planning in agriculture and rural development
for over four decades. Professor Mandal had his bachelor’s and master’s

in agricultural economics from Bangladesh Agricultural University (BAU) in
1973 and 1974, respectively. He did his PhD from the University of London

in 1979 and post-doctoral studies from the University of Oxford in 1986-87.
Professor Mandal’s major areas of academic interests include agriculture

and rural development, food and agricultural policy planning, irrigation and
water resource management, agricultural technology, rural mechanisation and
agribusiness development.

Professor Mandal was the Vice-Chancellor of Bangladesh Agricultural University
(BAU), Mymensingh, during 2008-2011. He worked for the Bangladesh
Planning Commission first as a member of the General Economics Division
during 2000-2001 when he led the mid-term evaluation of the Fifth Five

Year Plan and completed the background studies for the Sixth Five Year Plan.
He served the Planning Commission for the second term as member for
Agriculture, Water Resources & Rural Institutions Division during 2011-2013
when he was involved in the evaluation and approval of many high-profile
projects relating to Blue Gold project, capital dredging of the Jamuna river, rural
development, food security and poverty reduction.

Professor Mandal has been affiliated with BAU as its first emeritus professor of
agricultural economics since 2017. He is currently a member of the syndicate
of Bangladesh Agricultural University and Sylhet Agricultural University. He has
been advising the Ministry of Agriculture, Government of the People’s Republic
of Bangladesh as a member of its expert pool. He is currently a member of the
Governing Body of BRAC Bangladesh. Professor Mandal has been a member
of the Independent Steering Committee (ISC) for the new CGIAR research
programme on Fish AgriFood Systems (FISH) of the WorldFish, Penang,
Malaysia. Professor Mandal also advises Water Resources Group 2030 of the
World Bank and CIMMYT- Bangladesh.

Until recently, Professor Mandal was a government nominated member of the
Board of Directors of the Krishi Gobeshona Foundation (Agricultural Research
Foundation and also a Trustee of the Bangladesh Krishi Gobeshona Endowment
Trust (BKGET) of the government. He also worked as a Senior Advisor to the
Food and Agriculture Organization of the United Nations (FAO) in Bangladesh
during 2015-2016.

He has worked as a visiting professor in many universities abroad including
School of Development Studies of the University of East Anglia, UK in 1997
and 2000, and Faculty of Life Sciences of the Rhine-Waal University of Applied
Sciences, Kleve, Germany since 2013 through 2017.

Professor Mandal received the Ekushey Padak (second highest civilian award in
Bangladesh) in 2022 for his contribution in the field of research.

Tapan Chowdhury
Member

Tapan Chowdhury is a prominent industrialist and leads SQUARE, one
of the pioneer and respected business houses of Bangladesh. SQUARE
is engaged in pharmaceuticals, hospitals, vertically integrated textiles,
toiletries, food & consumer products, information & communication
technology, organic tea plantation, stock brokerage and satellite television
broadcasting.

During the last Caretaker regime, Mr Chowdhury was an advisor (Minister)
responsible for the Ministry of Power & Energy, Youth & Sports, Food &
Disaster Management and Science and ICT.

Mr Chowdhury was the immediate past president of Bangladesh Textile
Mills Association (BTMA) and former president of the Metropolitan
Chamber of Commerce and Industry (MCCI), past president of
Bangladesh Employers Federation (BEF) and Bangladesh Association of
Publicly Listed Companies (BAPLC).

Mr Chowdhury is currently an advisor to Bangladesh Association of
Pharmaceutical Industries (BAPI), trustee of Bangladesh University of
Health Sciences Trust (BUHS), director of Pioneer Insurance Limited,
Guardian Life Insurance Limited, board member of Central Depository

of Bangladesh Limited (CDBL), governing body member of Bangladesh
Enterprise Institute (BEI), executive committee member of International
Chamber of Commerce (ICC), core group member of the United Forum of
Churches of Bangladesh .

Over the years, the Government of Bangladesh has recognised Mr
Chowdhury as one of the highest individual taxpayers of the country. He
is a graduate of University of Dhaka and completed many advanced level
courses on Business Management & Strategic Planning from the UK.
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BRAC INTERNATIONAL
SUPERVISORY BOARDS

Irene Khan

CHAIR Stichting BRAC International Supervisory Board

An international thought leader and advocate on human rights, gender
and social justice issues, Irene Khan is the United Nations Special
Rapporteur on Freedom of Opinion and Expression, and distinguished
fellow at the Graduate Institute for International and Development Studies
in Geneva. Ms Khan was Secretary-General of Amnesty International
from 2001 to 2009, and Director-General of the International
Development Law Organization (IDLO) from 2012 — 2019. Prior to that,
she worked for the United Nations High Commissioner for Refugees for
21 years at headquarters and in various countries.

Ms Khan sits on the boards of several international NGOs and think
tanks, and has been a member of the World Bank’s Gender Advisory
Council. She has received several honourary degrees and prestigious
awards, including the Sydney Peace Prize in 2006 for her work to end
violence against women and girls. Her book, The Unheard Truth: Poverty
and Human Rights, has been translated into seven languages. Born in
Bangladesh, Ms Khan studied law at the University of Manchester and
Harvard Law School.
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Sylvia Borren

Vice Chair Stichting BRAC International Supervisory Board

Sylvia Borren has worked all her life within and for civil society
organisations, both professionally and as a volunteer. She was part of
the Dutch and global women’s and sexual rights movements (COG, ILGA,
IWC for a just and sustainable Palestinian-Israeli peace) and is now
advisor to the UN Women National Committee Netherlands and ATRIA
(institute on gender equality and women’s history). Ms Borren was part
of the anti-poverty movement (director of Oxfam Novib 1994-2008, and
co-chair of the Global Call to Action against Poverty and EEN).

She was on two national governmental advisory commissions (for Youth
Policy and the Advisory Council on International Affairs), co-chair of the
Worldconnectors (a Dutch think tank), on the board of a large mental
health institute (Altrecht), worked as an organisational consultant with
De Beuk for many years, led the project Quality Educators for All with the
trade union Education International, and continues to be a member of the
Worldconnectors.

Ms Borren was recently director of Greenpeace Netherlands (2011-
2016), part of the Forest Stewardship Council Netherlands, and is now
on the advisory commission of Staatsbosbeheer, which manages nature
reserves.

She is a freelance consultant at “Working for Justice’ and a senior advisor
for Governance & Integrity.



Dr Debapriya Bhattacharya

MEMBER Stichting BRAC International Supervisory Board

Dr Debapriya Bhattacharya, a macroeconomist and public policy
analyst, is a distinguished fellow at the Centre for Policy Dialogue (CPD),
Dhaka, where he was its first executive director. He was Bangladesh’s
Ambassador and Permanent Representative to WTO and UN Offices in
Geneva and Vienna and former special advisor on LDCs to the Secretary
General of UNCTAD. Earlier, he was a senior research fellow at the
Bangladesh Institute of Development Studies (BIDS).

He studied in Dhaka, Moscow, and Oxford. Visiting positions held include
Senior Fulbright Fellow at the Center for Global Development, Washington
DC. He serves on the boards and working groups of various leading
institutions and editorial boards of reputed journals including Oxford
Development Studies. He was General Secretary of the Bangladesh
Economic Association for three consecutive terms.

Dr Bhattacharya chairs the Southern Voice, a network of 50 think tanks
from Africa, Asia, and Latin America, dedicated to following up and
reviewing the implementation of the Sustainable Development Goals. He
led the pioneering multi-country studies on shaping the 2030 Agenda of
the United Nations, data deficits of SDG monitoring, and early signals of
SDG implementation in the developing countries. He also chairs LDC IV
Monitor, an independent partnership of eight international organisations
and academic institutions engaged in monitoring the outcome of the
fourth United Nations Conference on the Least Developed Countries.

He serves as the Convenor of the Citizen’s Platform for SDGs, Bangladesh
— a platform of more than 100 NGOs and private sector bodies, seeking
to contribute to the delivery of the SDGs at the country level.

He recently edited the volume Bangladesh’s Graduation from the Least
Developed Countries Group: Pitfalls and Promises, Routledge (2018);
Southern Perspectives on the Post-2015 International Development
Agenda, Routledge, London (2017); and was the team leader of the study
Quest for Inclusive Transformation of Bangladesh: Who Not to be Left
Behind (2017).

Parveen Mahmud FCA

MEMBER Stichting BRAC International Supervisory Board
Interim Chair BRAC International Holdings B.V. Supervisory Board

Parveen Mahmud is the chairperson of Underprivileged Children
Education Program, Bangladesh. She started her career with BRAC and
was the deputy managing director of Palli Karma Sahayak Foundation
(PKSF). She has diverse experiences with national and international
development agencies, the corporate sector, and is a practising
accountant.

Ms Mahmud was the founding managing director of Grameen Telecom
Trust. She was a partner in Acnabin & Co, Chartered Accountants. She

is the first female president of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
Bangladesh (ICAB), and also, the first female board member of the South
Asian Federation of Accountants (SAFA), the apex accounting professional
body of SAARC. She is the chairperson of CA Female Forum — Women in
Leadership Committee, ICAB and is the vice chairperson of the Women in
Leadership Committee of SAFA.

She sits on numerous boards including Transparency International
Bangladesh, Centre for Policy Dialogue, PKSF, Rangpur Dinajpur
Rural Service, Manusher Jonnyo Foundation, Dhaka Ahsania Mission
Foundation for Economic Development, Ghashful and Grameenphone
Limited. She is an independent director of Apex Footwear Limited and
Berger Paints Bangladesh Limited.

Ms Mahmud is the chairperson of Her Story Foundation and Dakkha
— Skilling Bangladesh. She was the chairperson of Micro Industries
Development and Assistance Services, Acid Survivor’s Foundation and
Shasha Denims Limited.

Ms Mahmud served as a member of the National Advisory Panel and was
convener, SME Women'’s Forum for SME Development of Bangladesh.
She was also the founding board member of the SME Foundation and a
working group member of the Consultative Group on Social Indicators of
UNCTAD/ISAR.

Ms Mahmud has received several accolades for her services, including
Ananyanna Top Ten Women — 2018 Award in 2019, Joya Alokito Nari —
2018 Award from RTV, and Begum Rokeya Shining Personality Award
2006 from Narikantha Foundation.
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Victoria Sekitoleko

MEMBER Stichting BRAC International Supervisory Board

Victoria Balyejusa Sekitoleko is a former Minister of Agriculture
in the Ugandan government. She was a representative of the
United Nations Food and Agriculture Organization (FAQ) in China,
Mongolia, and South Korea, and previously served as the FAQ’s
representative in Ethiopia to the African Union and to the Economic
Community for Africa.

Ms Sekitoleko is currently the chair of the governing board of the
Uganda Agribusiness Alliance, which unites all those involved in the
industry to optimise their ability to profitably and sustainably pursue
the many global opportunities in the world’s largest industry.

In 2010, Ms Sekitoleko founded the Uganda Community Cultural
Centre which trades as Speakers Forum. This trains professionals
to become skilled presenters, and also supports community
libraries.

Ms Sekitoleko was educated at Makerere University in Kampala,

where she obtained a BSc in agriculture majoring in farm
management and extension.

Amira Elmissiry

MEMBER Stichting BRAC International Supervisory Board
BRAC International Holdings B.V. Supervisory Board

Amira Elmissiry is the chief accountability officer at the
Corporate Performance and Accountability Department of

African Development Bank based in Abidjan, Cote D’Ivoire. She

is an experienced lawyer and investment professional in private
equity and corporate finance and holds an MBA from the African
Leadership University. Amira has worked with various international
organisations, including Initiatives of Change International,

a Geneva-based international organisation, and the German
Technical Cooperation. She has a passion for development finance,
social justice and sourcing ways for promoting entrepreneurial
development amongst young people. Some of Amira’s personal
achievements till date include being recognised by the Choiseul
Institute — as one of the top100 African Economic Leaders, MIPAD
100 Most Influential People of African Descent and Forbes Africa
Top 20 Youngest Power Women in Africa.

ANNUAL REPORT 2021

Stephen Rasmussen

MEMBER Stichting BRAC International Supervisory Board
BRAC International Holdings B.V. Supervisory Board

Stephen Rasmussen is the acting CEO of CGAP, an independent
resource centre housed in the World Bank that is dedicated to
advancing financial inclusion for people living in poverty. Mr
Rasmussen has 30 years of development and financial inclusion
experience. In 2014-2015, he established and was the first CEO
of Karandaaz Pakistan, a start-up company focused on small
business finance for job creation, digital financial inclusion, and
innovation in the financial sector. Before joining CGAP, he was the
World Bank’s microfinance focal point for South Asia. From 2001
t0 2008, he was the CEO of the Pakistan Microfinance Network,
and from 1994 to 2003, he was the CEQ of the Aga Khan Rural
Support Programme, a large rural development programme

in northern Pakistan, where he also helped establish First
MicroFinanceBank, the first microfinance bank in Pakistan.



BRAC GLOBAL BOARD

Dr Martha Alter Chen
Chair

Martha (Marty) Chen is a Lecturer in Urban Planning and Design

at the Harvard Graduate School of Design and Co-Founder, Emeritus
International Coordinator and Senior Advisor of the global network
Women in Informal Employment: Globalizing and Organizing (www.wiego.
org). An experienced development practitioner and scholar, her areas of
specialization are employment, gender and poverty with a focus on the
working poor in the informal economy.

Before joining Harvard in 1987, she had two decades of resident
development experience working in Bangladesh (with the NGO BRAC) and
in India (as field representative of Oxfam America). Dr. Chen co-founded
and, for twenty years, led the WIEGO network which is well known
worldwide for its work to improve the status of the working poor in the
informal economy through stronger organizations, improved statistics and
research and a more favorable policy environment.

Dr. Chen received a PhD in South Asia Regional Studies from the
University of Pennsylvania. She was awarded a high civilian award, the
Padma Shri, by the Government of India in April 2011; and a Friends of
Bangladesh Liberation War award by the Government of Bangladesh in
December 2012.

Currently, she is chair of the boards of BRAC Global and the United
Nations University World Institute for Development Economics Research
(UNU WIDER).

Dr Hossain Zillur Rahman
Senior Trustee

Ameerah Haq
Member

Ms Ameerah Haq is a former Under-Secretary-General of the United
Nations at the Department of Field Support, for which she held the position
from 2009, until her retirement. She was the senior most Bangladeshi
national in the United Nations during those years. She recently served as

the Vice-Chair of the Independent High-level Panel on Peace Operations

at the UN. She has over 39 years of experience working with the United
Nations, including 19 years in field assignments. She was the last Special
Representative of the Secretary-General (SRSG) in the UN Integrated Mission

in Timor-Leste. She has also held the positions of Deputy SRSG and UN
Resident Coordinator and Humanitarian Coordinator in Sudan, as well as
Deputy SRSG and UN Resident Coordinator in Afghanistan. In addition,
Ms Hag has held senior positions within UNDP, and has served as United
Nations Coordinator in Malaysia and Laos.

Ms Haq currently serves on the board of the Centre for Humanitarian
Dialogue in Geneva, Human Rights up Front, and on the board of the
Peace Operations Training Institute in Virginia. She is also an Advisor to
the United Nations Foundation in Washington and a member of the Special
Advisory Group at the Challenges Forum of the Folke Bernadette Academy
of Sweden. Ms Haq also delivers lectures at universities and speaks at
seminars hosted by think tanks and non-governmental organisations.

During her service at the UN, Ms Haq was awarded the highest Presidential
Medal in East Timor by President Jose Ramos Horta, the highest civilian
medal of the Lao People’s Democratic Republic and the Malalai Medal of
Honor from President Hamid Karzai of Afghanistan, which is among the
highest civilian honours given for courage and dedication. She is also the
recipient of the Julia Taft Outstanding Humanitarian Service Award during
the time she served as humanitarian coordinator for her work in Darfur,
Sudan.

Ms Haq received a Bachelor’s degree in Psychology from Western College
for Women in Oxford, Ohio, in 1969. She subsequently went on to receive
a Master’s degree in Community Organisation and Planning from Columbia
University, New York, in 1972, and a Master’s in Business Administration
from New York University in 1974,

Ms Hagq is a mother of two children, Sheehan Perera and Nadina Perera.

Lord Mark Malloch—-Brown KCMG
Member

Mark Malloch—-Brown is President of the Open Society Foundations.
He is on the board of the UN Foundation and the International Crisis
Group and is on the advisory committees to the heads of the IMF and
UNICEF.

He served as deputy secretary-general and earlier chief of staff of the
UN under Kofi Annan. For six years before that he was administrator of
the UNDP, leading the UN’s development efforts around the world. He
was later Minister of State in the Foreign Office, covering Africa and
Asia, and sat in Prime Minister Gordon Brown’s cabinet. He has also
served as vice-chairman of the World Economic Forum. He began his
career as a journalist at The Economist and then worked for the UN High
Commissioner for Refugees and was later a vice-president of the World
Bank.

He formerly chaired the Business Commission on Sustainable
Development and the Royal Africa Society. He is author of The
Unfinished Global Revolution: The Limits of Nations and the Pursuit of a
New Politics.
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Minouche Shafik,
Baroness Shafik DBE
Member

Nemat (Minouche) Shafik is a leading economist, whose career has
straddled public policy and academia. She was appointed as the director of
the London School of Economics and Political Science in September 2017.

She did her BA at the University of Massachusetts-Amherst, her MSc at
LSE and her DPhil at the University of Oxford and, by the age of 36, had
become the youngest ever Vice President of the World Bank. She taught at
Georgetown University and the Wharton Business School. She later served
as the permanent secretary of the Department for International Development
from 2008 to 2011, deputy managing director of the International Monetary
Fund from 2011-2014 and as deputy governor of the Bank of England from
2014-2017, where she sat on all the monetary, financial and prudential
policy committees and was responsible for a balance sheet of over £500
billion.

Minouche has sat on and chaired numerous boards and currently serves

on the Board of Trustees of the Bill & Melinda Gates Foundation, the
Supervisory Board of Siemens, the Council of the Institute for Fiscal Studies,
the Global Board of BRAC, and is deputy chair of the Board of Trustees of the
British Museum. She was made a Dame Commander of the British Empire in
the Queen’s Birthday Honours list in 2015, a Crossbench Peer in the House
of Lords in 2020, and an honorary fellow of the British Academy in 2021.

Her book What We Owe Each Other. A New Social Contract is out now.

Irene Khan
Member
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Raymond C Offenheiser
Member

I

Raymond C Offenheiser is Director of the Pulte Institute for Global
Development, part of the University of Notre Dame’s Keough School of
Global Affairs, where he serves as Distinguished Professor of the Practice
and provides strategic leadership to the Pulte Institute’s academic, research,
and public policy activities. A widely-known nonprofit leader, innovator, and
international development expert, Offenheiser served as President of Oxfam
America for 20 years. Prior to joining Oxfam, Offenheiser represented the
Ford Foundation in Bangladesh and the Andean and Southern Cone regions
of South America, as well as directing programmes for the Inter-American
Foundation in Brazil and Colombia.

At the 2012 G20 Summit, Offenheiser was appointed by the Obama
Administration to represent civil society on the leadership council of the New
Alliance for Food Security and Nutrition in Africa. He currently is the Chair of
the Board of BRAC USA and a member of the board of BRAC Global which
oversees the work of all BRAC affiliated entities across the world. He is also
a board member of the Oxfam America Action Fund and the Consensus
Building Initiative. He also serves on the Forum for Corporate Responsibility
for BHP Mining Corporation and the Development Partners Initiative.
Offenheiser was a co-founder of the ONE Campaign and the Washington,
DC based, the Modernizing Foreign Assistance Network, and the Food Policy
Action Network. He has also served on the advisory boards of the World
Economic Forum, the Council on Foreign Relations, the Aspen Institute, the
World Agricultural Forum, the Gates Foundation, the Clinton Global Initiative,
and both Harvard and Cornell Universities.

Ken Caldwell
Member

Ken Caldwell has held a wide variety of executive and non-executive
leadership roles in international development and humanitarian
organisations over the past 30 years.

He has served as Global Programmes Director at Save the Children,
and Executive Director of WaterAid International. He is Chair of the
Board Programme Committee at Oxfam GB, and has also served as a
board member of the Institute of Development Studies, as a member of
the UK Roundtable on Sustainable Development, and as the Founding
Chair of BOND (the representative body for UK INGOs). He has worked
with a wide range of leading global NGO federations, providing advice
on global strategy and governance issues, and has published research
on INGO governance.

Ken was elected as Chair of BRAC UK in May 2021, and joined the
BRAC Global Board in June 2021.



BRAC Bangladesh
Programme Committee

At its 160th meeting, the BRAC Governing Body
approved the process for new grants approval and
formed a programme committee to bring rigour and
risk mitigation into the project approval process. A
four-member Programme Committee was formed:

1. Dr Hossain Zillur Rahman, Chairperson, Governing
Body, BRAC Bangladesh

2. Melissa Parke, Member, Governing Body, BRAC
Bangladesh

3. Adv. Syeda Rizwana Hassan, Member, Governing
Body, BRAC Bangladesh

4. Lord Mark Malloch-Brown KCMG, Member
(resigned from the Governing Body on December,
2020)

After due deliberation, approval was given to the
following:

e Approved the proposal of Bangladesh Community
Nutrition and Health Activity project

* Approved the proposal for the Bangladesh Youth
Activity project

e Approved the proposal of ‘Improving Skills and
Economic Opportunities for the Host Community
and Rohingya Youth and Adolescents in Cox’s
Bazar’ project

* Approved the proposal titled — ‘Secretariat Host
and Grant Custodian of START fund Bangladesh’.

* Approved the proposal for ‘Safe School Reopening
under Bangladesh COVID-19 School Sector
Response (CSSR) Project’

* Approved the proposal titled - ‘Supporting Primary
Education During COVID-19’

* Approved the project titled - ‘Community Fort for
Resisting COVID-19 in Bangladesh’

The BRAC Bangladesh Impact Committee constitutes
of the following Governing Body Members:

1. Dr Hossain Zillur Rahman, Chairperson

2. Dr Fahmida Khatun

3. Professor Dr M A Sattar Mandal

BRAGC, as an entity, has multiple identities, but at its
core, as embedded by its founder, it is a purpose-
driven organisation, responsive to the needs of people
who are the furthest behind, supporting them to
unlock their potential.

The committee will provide guidance in four
strategic areas:

e Qutcomes for participants

e QOrganisational sustainability

e Knowledge creation

e Brand value

Highlights of the key decisions taken

The first meeting was an introductory session on the
scope, frequency and other matters of the Impact
Committee.
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BRAC Governing Body

Committees

BRAC Finance, Audit and Risk (FARC)
Committee

The governing body of BRAC constitutes the BRAC
Finance, Audit & Risk Committee with the following
members:

1. Adeeb H Khan Chair
Member, BRAC Governing Body

2. Fathima Dada Member
Member, BRAC Governing Body

3. Adv. Syeda Rizwana Hasan Member
Member, BRAC Governing Body

4. Melissa Dawn Parke Member
Member, BRAC Governing Body

5. Asif Saleh Member
Executive Director, BRAC (ex-officio)

6. Tamara Hasan Abed Member

Managing Director, Enterprises
BRAC (ex-officio)

Tushar Bhowmik, Chief Financial Officer, BRAC
acts as member secretary of the committee.

Each member is free of any relationship that would
interfere with the exercise of his or her independent
judgment as a member of the committee. Members
of the committee have professional experience and
expertise in different sectors.

Role and purpose

The primary function of the BRAC Finance,
Audit and Risk Committee is to assist the
BRAC Governing Body (the board) in fuffilling its
responsibilities regarding:

e Financial reporting and budgeting processes;
system of internal controls and risk assessment;

e  Compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements;
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e Qualifications, independence, and performance
of the external auditors; and

e Qualifications, independence, and performance
of the internal audit function.

Meetings during 2020-2021
Three meetings were held:

1. Meeting date: 2 December 2020

Highlights of the key discussions and decisions
taken:

e The committee recommended the annual
budget of 2021 of USD 1,587 million (BDT
13,490 crores) for the year 2021 for the approval
from Governing Body;

e  The committee noted the lower fatality rate in
the country and also expressed satisfaction with
the various measures taken by the organisation
for employee well-being;

e  The committee approved the Internal Audit Plan
for the year 2021;

e  The committee approved the revised Internal
Audit Charter of BRAC.

2. Meeting date: 24 March 2021

Highlights of the key discussions and decisions
taken:

e  The committee advised management to work
on the internal audit observations and ensure
appropriate corrective actions;

e The committee authorised the Chair of the
Committee to approve the 2020 Audited
Financial Statement on behalf of the Audit
Committee.

3. Meeting date: 26 May 2021

Highlights of the key discussions and decisions
taken:



e The committee recommended presenting the
Audited Financial Statements for the year ended
on 31 December 2020 to the 49th Annual
General Meeting for approval;

e The committee recommended placing the
revised Annual Budget of USD 1,009 million for
the year 2021 to the 163rd meeting of the BRAC
Governing Body for approval;

e The committee endorsed the proposal of Nurul
Faruk Hasan & Co. as the external auditor for
the financial year 2021-22 and calendar year
2021 at a proposed fee of BDT 2,000,000 (USD
23,350) for each year to be placed to the BRAC
General Body for approval;

e  The committee approved the revised Internal
Audit Plan for the year 2021 together with the
updated KPIs;

BRAC Investment Committee

The BRAC Investment Committee is responsible

for reviewing and approving investments within the
authority delegated by the Governing Body of BRAC.
The Governing Body constituted the Committee with
the following members:

1.  Shafiqul Hassan Chairperson
Member, BRAC Governing Body

2. Fathima Dada Member
Member, BRAC Governing Body

3. Adeeb H.Khan Member
Member, BRAC Governing Body

4. Tamara Abed Member

Managing Director, Enterprises
BRAC (ex-officio)

Tushar Bhowmik, Chief Financial Officer, BRAC
acts as member secretary of the committee.

Ombudsperson

BRAC has established an Office of the
Ombudsperson with a comprehensive mandate to
investigate any grievance or complaint made to him/
her by any individual concerning any decision taken
by BRAC. The Ombudsperson always maintains
the highest level of confidentiality regarding
complainants and complaints. The office prepares
an annual report concerning the discharge of its
functions and submits it to the Chairperson who
then puts the report before the governing body for
their consideration. Currently, Ms Rokeya Sultana is
the Ombudsperson of BRAC.

External auditor

The appointment of Nurul Faruk Hasan & Co.,
Chartered Accountants, Bangladesh (member firm
of Deloitte) as the auditor of BRAC for the financial
year 2021-22 and calendar year 2021 was approved
in BRAC’s Annual General Meeting.
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FINANCIALS

Revenue Expenditure 2020-21

652.7

Revenue Expenditure 2021 vs 2020

Figures in million USD

m Revenue Expenditure 2019-20

Microfinance _ 474.4

162.3 Social enterprises - 139.7
60.1 Health programme I 57.1
53.2 HCMP I 526

22.6 pErg;f:r:Cr::e I 218
21.4 UPG 18.6
7.4 SDP 8.3
4.2 WASH o8
3.5 HRLS 3.7
3.1 CEP 3.3

435 Others I 293

Contribution of BRAC to Government Exchequer

30 June 2021

30 June 2020

Particulars BDT | usD BDT | usD

Direct Tax Payment 700,000,000 8,338,297 279,684,768 3,331,564
Tax deduction at source by the third parties 679,300,294 8,091,725 241,972,128 2,882,336
Tax deduction at source from third parties 414,188,591 4,933,753 371,557,766 4,425,941
Value Added Tax 1,075,057,780 12,805,929 807,558,610 9,619,519
Import Duty 213,795,374 2,546,699 377,802,557 4,500,328
Total 3,082,342,039 36,716,403 2,078,575,829 24,759,688

4 |

Exchange rate: 1 USD = BDT 83.95 as on June 30, 2021
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Figures in million USD

Donation Composition 2021 vs 2020

m Grants Composition 2020-21 m Grants Composition 2019-20

027 | FCDO (DFID) I w0
172 | UNHCR T 20
169 DFAT 100
09 | UNICEF N o0
78| WFP | s

6.4 I GAC B
Unilever _
4.6 I Bangladesh

3.9' Sesame Workshop I 3.9
30|  unops(oFD) | 06

3.0 I BRAC USA I 6.4

23.4 - Others - 33.0

Total Income Contribution Total Expenditure Allocation
% for FY 2021 % for FY 2021
Self-financing, 4.1% Community
contribution, 0.6% Development
programme,
21.2%

Development grant,
14.2%

Social enterprise,
14.9% Social enterprise,

15.7%
Microfinance,

63.1%
Microfinance, 66.2%
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BRAC
Statement of Financial Position
As at 30 June 2021
(Not part of audited financial statements)

30 June 2021 30 June 2020

Particulars BDT | usD BDT | UsD

ASSETS

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment

Intangible assets

Investments in related undertakings

Investments in securities and others-non-current portion
Total non-current assets

Current assets

Inventories

Grants and accounts receivable

Microfinance loans

Advance, deposits and prepayments

Investments in securities and others-current portion
Cash and bank balances

Total current assets
TOTAL ASSETS

CAPITAL FUND AND LIABILITIES
Capital fund

Unrestricted

Temporarily restricted

Total capital fund

Liabilities

Current liabilities

Liabilities for expenses and materials

Bank overdrafts

Term loans-current portion

Members' savings deposits-current portion
Grants received in advance

Loan loss provision

Provision for taxation

Total current liabilities

Non-current liabilities

Term loans-non-current portion

Members' savings deposits-non-current portion
Deferred income

Other long term liabilities

Total non-current liabilities

Total liabilities

TOTAL CAPITAL FUND AND LIABILITIES
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20,308,604,602 241,913,098 19,323,619,348 230,180,099
172,551,016 2,055,402 150,645,525 1,794,467
34,410,629,577 409,894,337 32,057,891,313 381,868,866
808,600,000 9,631,924 1,008,600,000 12,014,294
55,700,385,195 663,494,761 52,540,756,186 625,857,727
7,068,823,893 84,202,786 7,213,337,291 85,924,208
4,046,786,812 48,204,727 3,755,310,123 44,732,699
271,869,452,253 3,238,468,758  274,651,069,982 3,271,602,978
13,478,943,089 160,559,179 11,899,342,981 141,743,216
30,636,037,664 364,931,955 18,043,701,516 214,933,907
17,359,428,467 206,782,948 16,469,683,663 196,184,439

344,459,472,178

4,103,150,354

332,032,445,555

3,955,121,448

400,159,857,373

4,766,645,115

384,573,201,742

4,580,979,175

152,979,433,674
481,581,742

1,822,268,418
5,736,531

138,518,114,284
481,581,742

1,650,007,317
5,736,531

153,461,015,417

1,828,004,948

138,999,696,026

1,655,743,848

22,234,247,207
168,877,058
36,009,174,074
71,612,997,041
2,359,189,047
21,032,842,277
6,433,358,847

264,851,069
2,011,639
428,935,963
853,043,443
28,102,311
250,540,111
76,633,220

19,006,169,758
31,171,194,721
51,350,860,149
59,052,509,530

2,859,176,014
11,079,110,781

4,582,206,820

226,398,687
371,306,667
611,683,861
703,424,771

34,058,082
131,972,731

54,582,571

159,850,685,551

1,904,117,755

179,101,227,773

2,133,427,371

4,038,055,556 48,100,721 162,340,910 1,933,781
63,897,000,426 761,131,631 47,983,286,625 571,569,823
1,259,278,266 15,000,337 730,551,715 8,702,224
17,653,822,158 210,289,722 17,596,098,692 209,602,129
86,848,156,405 1,034,522,411 66,472,277,942 791,807,956

246,698,841,956

2,938,640,166

245,573,505,716

2,925,235,327

400,159,857,373

4,766,645,115

384,573,201,742

4,580,979,175




BRAC
Statement of Income and Expenditure
For the year ended 30 June 2021
(Not part of audited financial statements)

30 June 2021 30 June 2020

Particulars BDT [ usD BDT [ UsD
Income

Donor grants 14,491,503,774 172,620,652 13,930,887,623 165,942,676
Social enterprises 15,242,448,976 181,565,801 12,449,205,310 148,293,095
Microfinance programme 67,679,519,581 806,188,441 53,662,698,127 639,222,134
Self-financing social development programme 1,662,909,443 19,808,332 870,250,089 10,366,291
Investment income 2,436,176,626 29,019,376 178,011,092 2,120,442
Community contribution 610,771,035 7,275,414 790,079,960 9,411,316
House property 110,538,956 1,316,724 77,994,837 929,063
Total income 102,233,868,391 1,217,794,740 81,959,127,038 976,285,015
Expenditure

Social enterprises 18,626,572,340 162,317,717 11,729,682,827 189,722,249
Microfinance programme 54,794,547,966 652,704,562 39,828,807,322 474,434,870
House property 48,911,989 582,632 46,562,115 554,641
Agriculture and food security 1,461,027 17,404 8,994,303 107,139
Community empowerment programme 259,805,200 3,094,761 280,477,273 3,341,004
Education programme 1,901,214,677 22,646,988 2,330,836,604 27,764,581
Gender, justice and diversity 112,061,410 1,334,859 75,348,846 897,544
Health programme 5,045,846,141 60,105,374 4,789,803,273 57,055,429
Human rights and legal aids services 292,547,972 3,484,788 312,717,989 3,725,050
Policy advocacy 46,278,156 551,259 55,957,117 666,553
Water, sanitation and hygiene programme 353,273,845 4,208,146 231,754,545 2,760,626
Ultra poor programme 1,798,150,145 21,419,299 1,662,787,457 18,615,693
Forcibly-displaced Myanmar Nationals 4,462,200,099 53,153,068 4,414,923,435 52,589,916
Disaster management and climate change 627,987,074 7,480,489 277,816,629 3,309,311
Skills development programme 623,380,695 7,425,619 697,060,773 8,303,285
Migration programme 397,693,494 4,737,266 326,905,992 3,894,056
Social development programme 659,271,606 7,853,146 201,457,915 2,399,737
Other development projects 1,563,446,551 18,623,544 1,332,239,994 15,869,446
Grants 193,012,379 2,299,135 135,383,950 1,612,674
Total expenditure 86,807,662,768 1,034,040,057 68,639,518,360 817,623,804
Surplus/(deficit) of income over expenditure 15,426,205,623 183,754,683 13,319,608,678 158,661,211
Surplus of income over expenditure 15,426,205,623 183,754,683 13,319,608,678 158,661,211
before taxation

Income tax expense (1,851,152,028) (22,050,650) (493,047,456) (5,873,108)
Net surplus for the year 13,575,053,595 161,704,033 12,826,561,222 152,788,103

Exchange rate: 1 USD = BDT 83.95 as on June 30, 2021
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and
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For The Year Ended 30 June 2021

Nurul Faruk Hasan & Co
Chartered Accountants



. Nurul Faruk Hasan & Co
Chartered Accountants
Vertex Prominent (1st Floor)
GA-16/1 Mohakhali
Dhaka 1212, Bangladesh

Tel : +88 09611002202
Web : www.deloitte.com

Independent Auditors’ Report
To the Governing Body of BRAC

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of BRAC (“the Entity”) which comprise the statement of
financial position as at 30 June 2021, the statement of comprehensive income and expenditure, statement of changes
in capital fund and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of
BRAC as at 30 June 2021, and its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
the accounting policies as summarized in Note 2 to the financial statements.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
section of our report. We are independent of the entity in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for
Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (IESBA Code) together with the ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the financial statements in Bangladesh, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion.

Emphasis of matter - Basis of Accounting and Restriction on Distribution and Use

We draw attention to Note- 2 to the financial statements, which describes the basis of accounting and the significant
accounting policies. The financial statements are prepared to assist to meet the requirement of Clause 37 of the Rules
and Regulation of BRAC. The financial statements may not be suitable for another purpose.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Other Information

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises all of the information in the
Annual Report other than the financial statements and our auditors’ report thereon. The Annual Report is expected to
be made available to us after the date of this auditors’ report.
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Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information identified
above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements and
Internal Controls

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements of the entity in
accordance with the basis of accounting and accounting policies as summarized in Note-2 to the financial statements
and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Entity’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless management either intends to liquidate the entity or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to
do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Entity’s financial reporting process.

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements of the entity as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an Auditors’ report that includes
our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

e |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Entity’s internal control.

e FEvaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by management.

)
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e Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on
the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Entity’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors’ report to the related disclosures in the financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditors’ report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Entity to cease
to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing
of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during
our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Dhaka, Bangladesh For Nurul Faruk Hasan & Co
Dated: 30 December 2021 Chartered Accountants
Registration Ref. No. 1/1/ICAB-2008(1)

Shamsur Rahman, FCA
Partner

Enrollment No. 941

DVC: 2112300941AS170748
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BRAC

(Registered in Bangladesh under the Societies Registration Act, 1860)

Statement of financial position
As at 30 June 2021

Notes 30 June 2021 30 June 2020
Taka Taka

ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 3 20,308,604,602 19,323,619,348
Intangible assets 4 172,551,016 150,645,525
Investments in related undertakings 5 34,410,629,577 32,057,891,313
Investments in securities and others-non-current portion 6 808,600,000 1,008,600,000
Total non-current assets 55,700,385,195 52,540,756,186
Current assets
Inventories 7 7,068,823,893 7,213,337,291
Grants and accounts receivable 8 4,046,786,812 3,755,310,123
Microfinance loans 9 271,869,452,253 274,651,069,982
Advance, deposits and prepayments 10 13,478,943,089 11,899,342,981
Investments in securities and others-current portion 6 30,636,037,664 18,043,701,516
Cash and bank balances 11 17,359,428,467 16,469,683,663
Total current assets 344,459,472,178  332,032,445,555
TOTAL ASSETS 400,159,857,373  384,573,201,742
CAPITAL FUND AND LIABILITIES
Capital fund
Unrestricted 152,979,433,674 138,518,114,284
Temporarily restricted 481,581,742 481,581,742
Total capital fund 153,461,015,417  138,999,696,026
Liabilities
Current liabilities
Liabilities for expenses and materials 12 22,234,247,207 19,006,169,758
Bank overdrafts 13 168,877,058 31,171,194,721
Term loans-current portion 14 36,009,174,074 51,350,860,149
Members' savings deposits-current portion 15 71,612,997,041 59,052,509,530
Grants received in advance 16 2,359,189,047 2,859,176,014
Loan loss provision 9 21,032,842,277 11,079,110,781
Provision for taxation 17 6,433,358,847 4,582,206,820
Total current liabilities 159,850,685,551 179,101,227,773
Non-current liabilities
Term loans-non-current portion 14 4,038,055,556 162,340,910
Members' savings deposits-non-current portion 15 63,897,000,426 47,983,286,625
Deferred income 18 1,259,278,266 730,551,715
Other long term liabilities 19 17,653,822,158 17,596,098,692

Total non-current liabilities
Total liabilities

TOTAL CAPITAL FUND AND LIABILITIES

The annexed notes 01 to 34 form an integral part of these financial statements

86,848,156,405

66,472,277,942

246,698,841,956

245,573,505,716

400,159,857,373

384,573,201,742

Chief Financial Officer
BRAC

Executive Director
BRAC

Chairperson, Governing Body
BRAC

Per our annexed report of same date

For Nurul Faruk Hasan & Co
Chartered Accountants

Dhaka, Bangladesh
Dated: 30 December 2021

X

Shamsur Rahman, FCA
Partner

Enroliment No. 941

DVC: 2112300941AS170748
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BRAC
(Registered in Bangladesh under the Societies Registration Act, 1860)
Statement of comprehensive income and expenditure
For the year ended 30 June 2021

Notes Unrestricted Restricted 30 June 2021 30 June 2020
Taka Taka Taka Taka

Income
Donor grants 20 37,954,388 14,453,549,385 14,491,508,774  13,930,887,623
Social enterprises 21 15,242,448,976 - 15,242,448,976  12,449,205,310
Microfinance programme 22 67,679,519,581 - 67,679,519,581 53,662,698,127
Self-financing social development programme 23 1,662,909,443 - 1,662,909,443 870,250,089
Investment income 24 2,436,176,626 - 2,436,176,626 178,011,092
Community contribution 25 158,065,894 452,705,141 610,771,035 790,079,960
House property 110,538,956 - 110,538,956 77,994,837
Total income 87,327,613,865 14,906,254,526 102,233,868,391  81,959,127,038
Expenditure
Social enterprises 13,626,572,340 - 13,626,572,340  11,729,682,827
Microfinance programme 54,794,547,966 - 54,794,547,966  39,828,807,322
House property 48,911,989 - 48,911,989 46,562,115
Agriculture and food security - 1,461,027 1,461,027 8,994,303
Community empowerment programme 7,893,368 251,911,832 259,805,200 280,477,273
Education programme 317,976,258 1,583,238,419 1,901,214,677 2,330,836,604
Gender, justice and diversity - 112,061,410 112,061,410 75,348,846
Health programme 153,542,974 4,892,303,167 5,045,846,141 4,789,803,273
Human rights and legal aids services 2,974,417 289,573,555 292,547,972 312,717,989
Policy advocacy - 46,278,156 46,278,156 55,957,117
Water, sanitation and hygiene programme - 353,273,845 353,273,845 231,754,545
Ultra poor programme - 1,798,150,145 1,798,150,145 1,562,787,457
Forcibly-displaced Myanmar Nationals - 4,462,200,099 4,462,200,099 4,414,923,435
Disaster management and climate change - 627,987,074 627,987,074 277,816,629
Skills development programme 3,946,232 619,434,463 623,380,695 697,060,773
Migration programme - 397,693,494 397,693,494 326,905,992
Social development programme 659,271,606 - 659,271,606 201,457,915
Other development projects 230,295,929 1,333,150,622 1,563,446,551 1,332,239,994
Grants 193,012,379 - 193,012,379 135,383,950
Total expenditure 70,038,945,459 16,768,717,309 86,807,662,768  68,639,518,360
Surplus/(deficit) of income over expenditure 17,288,668,406 (1,862,462,783) 15,426,205,623  13,319,608,678
BRAC contribution to support Donor funded
programme 27 (1,862,462,783) 1,862,462,783 - -
Surplus of income over expenditure 15,426,205,623 - 15,426,205,623  13,319,608,678
before taxation
Income tax expense 28 (1,851,152,028) - (1,851,152,028) (493,047,456)

Net surplus for the year

13,575,053,595

13,575,058,595

12,826,561,222

The annexed notes 01 to 34 form an integral part of these financial statements

Blows X S

Chief Financial Officer Executive Director Chairperson, Governing Body
BRAC BRAC BRAC

Per our annexed report of same date

Dhaka, Bangladesh
Dated: 30 December 2021

For Nurul Faruk Hasan & Co
Chartered Accountants

Shamsur Rahman, FCA
Partner

Enrolliment No. 941

DVC: 2112300941AS170748
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BRAC

(Registered in Bangladesh under the Societies Registration Act, 1860)

Statement of cash flows

For the year ended 30 June 2021

Cash flows from operating activities:
Surplus of income over expenditure before taxation

Adjustments to reconcile changes in net assets to

net cash provided by operating activities:

Loan loss provision

Depreciation and amortization

(Gain)/loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment
Cash dividend received

Donor grants - amortization of investment in property, plant and equipment

and motorcycle replacement fund
Interest on fixed deposits and bank accounts

Adjustments for other accounts:

(Increase)/ decrease in service charge outstanding on microfinance loans

(Increase)/ decrease in inventories

(Increase)/ decrease in advances, deposits and prepayments
(Increase)/ decrease in accounts receivable

Increase/ (decrease) in liabilities for expenses and materials
Increase/ (decrease) in deferred income

Adjustment of advance tax

Net cash provided by operating activities
Cash flows from investing activities:

(Increase)/ decrease in microfinance loans

(Increase)/ decrease in fixed deposits and short term deposits
(Increase)/ decrease in investments in related undertakings
Interest received on fixed deposits and bank accounts

Purchase of property, plant and equipment & intangible assets
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment
Dividends received from related undertakings

(Investments in)/realization of investment in securities and others

Net cash used in investing activities

ANNUAL REPORT 2021

30 June 2021

30 June 2020

Notes
Taka Taka

15,426,205,623 13,319,608,678
9 15,075,810,946 3,145,332,509
3&4 1,256,200,696 1,256,304,196
23 179,682,701 (21,859,886)
24 (2,387,875,499) (88,355,126)
20 (221,659,611) (263,532,644)
26 (1,879,000,684) (1,688,075,942)
2,161,634,690 (5,979,958,336)
144,513,398 (1,464,071,961)
(1,579,600,108) (1,884,146,644)
619,478,741 4,717,026,420
3,228,077,449 4,055,840,740
750,386,161 197,328,247
- (4,997,401,577)
32,773,854,503 10,304,038,674
(4,502,096,411) (36,372,433,567)
(12,718,336,148) (1,570,049,223)
(1,234,524,961) (354,576,021)
26 1,879,000,684 1,688,075,942
3&4 (2,552,240,391) (1,469,855,142)
149,420,777 30,710,545
24 2,387,875,499 88,355,126
326,000,000 327,000,000

(16,264,900,951)

(37,632,772,340)




BRAC

(Registered in Bangladesh under the Societies Registration Act, 1860)

Statement of cash flows

For the year ended 30 June 2021

Notes

30 June 2021

30 June 2020

Taka

Taka

Cash flows from financing activities:

Grants received during the year
Grants utilized during the year for:
-operational expenditure
-investment in property, plant and equipment
-motorcycle replacement funds
Increase/ (decrease) in term loans
Increase/ (decrease) in members savings deposits
Increase/ (decrease) in other long term liabilities

Net cash provided by financing activities
Net Increase/ (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

The annexed notes 01 to 34 form an integral part of these financial statements

Bl P A

31
16

16
16

1.1

Executive Director
BRAC

Chief Financial Officer
BRAC

Dated: 30 December 2021

13,304,186,379

(14,236,644,651)
(750,386,161)
(11,465,971,430)
28,474,201,312
57,723,466

15,732,079,587

(13,654,675,350)
(192,211,811)
(5,116,436)
2,029,310,363
36,014,622,611
2,653,632,316

15,383,108,915

42,577,641,280

31,892,062,467

(14,701,511,058)

15,248,907,614

(29,950,418,672)

17,190,551,409

(14,701,511,058)

Chairperson, Governing Body

BRAC
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BRAC

(Registered in Bangladesh under the Societies Registration Act, 1860)

Statement of changes in capital fund
For the year ended 30 June 2021

Capital fund

Unrestricted Tempc.)rarily Total
restricted

Taka Taka Taka

As at 1 July 2019 122,675,707,857

Net surplus for the year 12,826,561,222

Share of non operating changes in net assets

in related undertakings 1,468,486,356

1,158,868,343

123,834,576,200

12,826,561,222

1,468,486,356

Investment reserve fund 791,351,934 - 791,351,934
Transferred from closed projects 756,006,915 (677,286,601) 78,720,314
As at 30 June 2020 138,518,114,284 481,581,742  138,999,696,026
As at 1 July 2020 138,518,114,284 481,581,742 138,999,696,026
Net surplus for the year 13,575,053,595 - 13,575,053,595
Share of non operating changes in net assets

in related undertakings 226,793,043 - 226,793,043
Investment reserve fund 659,472,753 - 659,472,753
Transferred to closed projects - - :
As at 30 June 2021 152,979,433,674 481,581,742  153,461,015,416

The annexed notes form an integral part of these financial statements

Bl P PR

Chief Financial Officer
BRAC

Executive Director
BRAC

Dated: 30 December 2021
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BRAC

(Registered in Bangladesh under the Societies Registration Act, 1860)

General information:

Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 30 June 2021

BRAC was formed as a development organization in 1972 under the Societies Registration Act 1860. Although BRAC was initially set
up to resettle refugees in post-war Bangladesh, later it redesigned its strategies in accordance with its philosophy of poverty
alleviation and empowerment of the poor. At present, BRAC has a large number of development programs that cover the areas of
health, education, credit, employment and training for the poor people of Bangladesh. BRAC also earns from various income
generating projects such as Aarong Rural Craft Centre, BRAC Printing Pack, BRAC Dairy and Food project and various programme
support enterprises such as Seed and Agro Enterprises, Fisheries.

Corporate information of BRAC:

1 Year of establishment 11972
2 Legal Entity (MRA Registration No.) : 00488-00186-00065
3 Nature of operations (Program) : Microfinance, Development Program and Social Enterprises
4 Statutory Audit Conducted up to : June 30, 2021
5 Name of Statutory auditor for last year : Nurul Faruk Hasan & Co.
6 Name of Statutory auditor for the current year : Nurul Faruk Hasan & Co.
7 No. Executive Committee meeting held in 2020-2021 11
8 Date of Last AGM held : 28th June 2021
9 List of BRAC Governing Body Members:
SL No. Name Qualification Profession Present Address
1 Dr. Hossain Zillur Rahman Ph D Economist “Kotha”, House 33, Flat 0/B, Road
15 (New), Dhanmondi R/A, Dhaka
1209.
2 Mr. Adeeb Hossain Khan Chartered Accountant Chartered House 59, Road 28, Flat A2 (2nd
Accountant Floor), Gulshan-1, Dhaka 1212.
3 Advocate Syeda Rizwana Hasan Masters in Law Chief Executive |House No.57/2, Central Road
BELA Dhanmondi, Dhaka.
4 Mr. Shafiqul Hassan MSc Business The Old Coach House, 25 Dunster
Gardens, London NW7 7NG, UK.
5 Ms. Melissa Dawn Parke LLM Lawyer 10/1 Roydhouse St., Subiaco, WA
6008, Australia.
6 Ms. Fathima Dada BA Business 7 Kenmore Road, Tamboerskloo,
Cape Town 8001, South Africa.
7 Dr. Fahmida Khatun Ph D Executive Apt# A1, House# 38, Road# 63,
Director, CPD Gulshan 2, Dhaka 1212.
8 Mr. Tapan Chowdhury BSc. Dhaka University, Industrialist 3 United Nations Road, Baridhara
Diploma in Marketing & Diplomatic Enclave, Dhaka-1212.
Management (U.K.)-1977
9 Dr. M. A. Sattar Mandal Ph D Teacher, House # B-6, Arambagh Housing
Researcher Society (Main Road), Rupnagar,

Mirpur-7, Dhaka-1216,
Bangladesh.

ANNUAL REPORT 2021 | 57




58 |

2.1

Summary of significant accounting policies:

BRAC prepares its financial statements on a going concern basis, under the historical cost convention, except for investments in shares
in listed companies (classified within investment in securities and others) and loans & borrowings which are stated at fair value and
amortized cost respectively. BRAC generally follows the accrual basis of accounting or a modified form thereof for key income and
expenditure items.

Given the nature and diversity in activities, BRAC has not been in a position to fully comply with the International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRSs). However, as leading NGO in both local and international perspective, BRAC has always been in persuasion to present
the best possible Financial Statements adhering to the applicable reporting norms including IFRSs as found suitable. Also, there was no
specific set of guiding rules or regulations including accounting and financial reporting standards strictly applicable for organization like
BRAC. BRAC had to apply policies that are most appropriate and practicable in this circumstances. Over time, all these policies have been
acceptable by the stakeholders and users of BRAC's financial statements.

However, according to the circulated gazette (Public Gazette by Financial Reporting Council on dated 16 March 2020), requiring Public
Interest Entities (PIE) to comply with IFRS in presenting financial statements, BRAC is contemplating to undertake an initiative to critically
workout the gap between existing reporting policies to the applicable IFRSs. Based on the results of this initiative, BRAC would take
necessary steps to bridge the gap by implementing additional policies including modification into the existing, in coming years, if found
appropriate.

The significant accounting policies, which have been materially consistent over the years, as applied and followed in the preparation and
presentation of these financial statements are summarized below:

Basis of ion of financi

BRAC maintains its books of account and records on project-wise basis under different programmes. The head office maintains records of
all treasury, investment and management functions. All cash balances, including those held for programmes, are held by the head office
and transferred to programmes as required. Balances between projects are eliminated upon combination for the purposes of presentation
of the financial statements.

These financial statements include the financial statements of BRAC and, the related undertakings set out in Note 5 in which BRAC has
equity interests through which it exercises control or significant influence.

In contrast to the ownership of equity interest in related undertakings, BRAC also extends gratuitous grants or provides donor liaison
assistance to certain organizations that, in some instances may bear names with resemblance to BRAC, viz BRAC University, Stitching
BRAC International, BRAC International Holdings B.V, BRAC Afghanistan, BRAC Myanmar, BRAC Tanzania, BRAC Uganda, BRAC South
Sudan, BRAC Liberia , BRAC Sierra Leone, BRAC Philippines, BRAC Nepal and BRAC Rwanda . However, no equity is held in these
entities, and BRAC's financial statements therefore do not include the financial information of these entities.

BRAC’s accounting records and financial statements are maintained and presented in accordance with the principles of fund accounting.
This is the procedure by which resources are classified for accounting and internal reporting into funds established according to their
nature and purposes based on the existence or absence of donor-imposed restrictions.

In the combined financial statements capital funds have been classified within either of two categories- temporarily restricted and
unrestricted. Accordingly, the capital funds of BRAC and changes therein are classified and reported as follows:

. Temporarily restricted funds - the segment of the funds are subject to donor-imposed restriction that permit BRAC to use or
expand the assets as specified. The restrictions are satisfied either by the passage of time and/or by actions of BRAC when
donor restrictions expire, that is when restrictions end or a purpose restriction is fulfilled, any balances of temporarily restricted
funds are either returned to donors in accordance with donor agreements or utilized consequent to donor and management
agreements on a temporarily restricted or unrestricted basis.

In case where restrictions expire, it is BRAC's policy to effect the reclassification of assets from temporarily restricted net assets
to unrestricted net assets via transfers within the balance sheet.

. Unrestricted funds - the segment of the funds are not subject to any donor-imposed restrictions or which arise from internally
funded activities. This category of funds include amongst others, amounts designated by BRAC for income generating activities,
programme support enterprises, micro-financing activities and self-financing social development activities.

ANNUAL REPORT 2021



2.2

2.3

2.4

2.5

2.6

2.7

2.8

2.9

E . )

These financial statements have been prepared for the period from 1 July 2020 to 30 June 2021.

ization for |
These financial statements have been authorized for issue by the Finance and Audit Committee (Representing BRAC's Governing
Body) of BRAC on 01 December 2021.

- . ificati

Comparative information have been disclosed in respect of the year ended on 30 June 2021 for all numerical information in the
financial statements and also the narrative and descriptive information when it is relevant for understanding of the current period's
financial statements.

Functi )

These financial statements are presented in Bangladesh Taka, which is BRAC's functional currency. Except as indicated the figures
have been rounded off to the nearest Taka.

f esti .
The preparation of financial statements requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the
application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ from
these estimates. Management uses judgment, estimates and assumptions in the areas including depreciation & amortization, loan
loss provision, gratuity provision, impairment of assets, taxation etc. as applicable.

Going concern

During the pandemic situation from COVID-19 outbreak, BRAC responded to support the community with awareness campaign
activity, offering food and cash support to the financially affected group in addition to coordinating with Govt. to support medical
response with BRAC doctors & volunteers.

During the lockdown situation, BRAC has taken several safety measures for its employees and beneficiaries to maintaining social
distancing. The upfront financial planning through scenario based forecast, alternate source of finance, implementing digital financial
tool at field offices, shifting to virtual online platform for regular official communication etc. helped to continue the stability of the
regular operations while maintaining social restriction. The pandemic situation does not have any impact on going concern of the
organization.

The management along with Board personnel assessed that COVID-19 will not have any material impact on BRAC’s financial strength
and future stability. BRAC has adequate resources to continue in operation for foreseeable future and hence, the financial statements
have been prepared on going concern basis.

o _—

BRAC, being a society registered under the Societies Registration Act, 1860 was not subject to any requirement on the preparation of
consolidated financial statements. However, being a PIE as defined by FRC, BRAC is required to prepare its financial statement in
compliance with all applicable International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS). BRAC, being the parent entity of a number of
subsidiaries, it is required to present consolidated financial statements. BRAC is contemplating to prepare consolidated financial
statements in the coming years.

Accordingly, BRAC’s investments in related undertakings wherein the effective equity interests are more than 50% are accounted for
as explained in Note 2.18, together with related undertakings in which BRAC has significant influence where effective equity interests
are below 50%.

Donor grants

Income from donor grants is recognized when conditions on which they depend on have been met. Substantially, BRAC’s donor grants
are for the funding of projects and programmes, and for these grants, income is recognized to equate to expenditure incurred on
projects and programmes. For donor grants which involve funding for property, plant and equipment, grant income is recognized as
the amount equivalent to depreciation expenses charged on the fixed assets concerned. For donor grants provided to purchase
motorcycles for specific projects, income is recognized over the estimated useful life of the motorcycles.

All donor grants received are initially recorded as liabilities in grants received in advance account. For grants utilized to purchase fixed
assets and motorcycles, the donor grants are transferred to deferred income accounts whilst for grants utilized to reimburse
programme-related expenditure, the amounts are recognized as income. Donor grants received in-kind, through the provision of gifts
and/or services, are recorded at fair value (excluding situations when BRAC may receive emergency supplies for onward distribution in
the event of a disaster which are not recorded as grants). Income recognition of such grants follows that of cash-based donor grants
and would thus depend on whether the grants are to be utilized for the purchase of fixed assets or expended as programme-related
expenditure.

Grant income is classified as temporarily restricted or unrestricted depending upon the existence of donor-imposed restrictions. For
completed or phased out projects and programmes, any unutilized amounts are dealt with in accordance with subsequent donor and
management agreements.
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2.10 Revenue recognition

BRAC recognises as revenue the amount that reflects the consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for goods
and services when it transfers control to the customer and excludes amounts collected on behalf of third parties. The entity recognises
revenue when it satisfies a performance obligation by transferring control over goods or services to a customer.

BRAC recognises revenue from the following major sources:
a) service charge on microfinance loan

b) sale of goods of social enterprises

c) donor grants

d) investment income

e) rental income from house property

Social enterprises projects

Social enterprises comprise Aarong Rural Craft Centre, BRAC Printing Pack, BRAC Dairy and Food Project, Seed and Agro Enterprises,
Fisheries, Artificial Insemination Center, Horticulture Nurseries, Chilling Centres, Recycled Hand Made Paper Production and Health Product
related activities.

Revenue from sale of goods

Revenue from the sale of goods is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, net of returns, discount and
VAT. Revenue is recognized at the time , when significant risks and rewards of ownership have been transferred to the buyer and
recovery of consideration is probable. Transfer of risks and rewards occur, when the goods are delivered to the distributor/customers
along with dispatch documents and invoices.

Service charge on microfinance loans

Service charges on microfinance loans are recognized on an accrual basis as income. The recognition of service charge ceases when a
loan is transferred to non-interest bearing loan. Service charge is included in income thereafter only when it is realized. Loans are
returned to the accrual basis only when the full amount of the outstanding arrears of loans received and future collectability is reasonably
assured.

Interest on bank accounts, fixed deposits, bonds

Interest income is recognized on an accrual basis.

House property income

House property income is recognized on an accrual basis whether cash is received or not.

Other income
Other income is recognized when BRAC's right to receive such income has been reasonably determined.

Community contributions

Community contributions represent fees charged to participants of selected programmes and activities run by BRAC and is recognized
when BRAC's right to receive such income has been reasonably determined.

Expenses

Programme related expenses arise from goods and services being distributed to beneficiaries in accordance with the programme
objectives and activities. BRAC's head office overhead expenses are allocated to various projects and programmes at a range of 7% to
10% of their costs, based on agreement with donors or management’s judgment.
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2.12  Property, plant and equipment
(a) Recognition and measurement

ltems of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.
Cost includes expenditures that are directly attributable to the acquisition of property, plant and equipment. The cost of an item of
property, plant and equipment is recognized as an asset if, and only if all the following conditions are met:

i) the asset is available for use

i) it is probable that future economic benefits will flow to BRAC

iii) the cost of the item can be measured reliably and exceeds Tk. 2,000
iv) it is expected to be used for more than 1 year

(b) Subsequent costs

Subsequent to recognition, plant and equipment and furniture and fixtures are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses. When significant parts of property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced in intervals, BRAC
recognizes such parts as individual assets with specific useful lives and depreciation respectively.

(c) Depreciation

Freehold land has an unlimited useful life and therefore is not depreciated. Depreciation is provided for on a straight-line basis over the
estimated useful lives of the assets at the following annual rates which are consistent with the prior year:

tem Annual Depreciation Rate (%)
Buildings 4-10
Furniture & Fixtures 10-20
Equipment 15-33.33
Computer and IT Equipment 20-33.33
Vehicles 20
Bicycles 20
Machineries 20

Deep tube wells and tanks 20
Hatcheries 20
Motorcycles 20
Camp/Poultry/Livestock sheds 20
Crates/Mannequins/Samples 33.33

The carrying values of property, plant and equipment are reviewed for impairment when events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the carrying value may not be recoverable.

(d) Derecognition

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or
disposal. Any gain or loss on derecognition of an item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

(e) Capital work in progress

Properties in the course of construction represents construction of items of property, plant and equipment that are not ready for use which
are carried at cost, less any recognised impairment loss. Assets under construction included in property, plant and equipment are not
depreciated as these assets are not ready for use. Depreciation of these assets, determined on the same basis as other property assets,
commences when the assets are ready for their intended use.

(f) Capitalisation of borrowing costs

As per the requirements of IAS 23 Borrowing Costs, directly attributable borrowing costs are capitalised during construction period for all
qualifying assets. A qualifying asset is an asset that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or
sale. The borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset are those
borrowing costs that would have been avoided if the expenditure on the qualifying asset had not been made. All other borrowing costs are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they are incurred.
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2.13 Intangible assets

2.14

2.16

(@) Recognition and measurement

Intangible assets that are acquired by the Company and have finite useful lives are measured at cost less accumulated amortisation
and accumulated impairment loss, if any. The cost of an intangible asset comprises its purchase price, non-refundable taxes and any
directly attributable cost of preparing the asset for its intended use. The cost of an item of intangible assets is recognized as an asset
if, and only if all the following conditions are met:

i) the asset is available for use

ii) it is probable that future economic benefits will flow to BRAC
i) the cost of the item can be measured reliably

iv) it is expected to be used for more than 1 year

(b) Subsequent costs

Subsequent costs are capitalised only when they increase the future economic benefits embodied in the specific asset to which they
relate. All other costs are recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

(c) Amortisation

Amortisation is recognised in profit or loss on a straight line basis over the estimated useful lives of intangible assets. The estimated
useful lives are as follows:

ization R o
Software 20

(d) Derecognition

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no future economic benefits are expected from use or disposal. Gains or
losses arising from derecognition of intangible assets, measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the assets, are recognised in profit or loss.

Microfi

BRAC micro-finance operations provide loans to members without collateral, on a service charge basis under various projects. Loans
encompasses both the principle and service charge outstanding in fair value. Loan loss provision has shown separately under current
liabilities.

Provision f

Management regularly assesses the adequacy of the loan loss provision based on the age of the loan portfolio and calculates the
required provision for loan losses based on the loan classification and following the provisioning methodology which is shown below:

- Daysi Provisi )
Current (no

Standard arrears) 1%

Watchlist 1-30 5%

Substandard 31-180 25%

Doubtful 181 - 365 75%

Loss Over 365 100%

MRA issued a directive on 22 June 2021 to halt the loan classification in a regular manner and keep balance of Loan Loss Reserve
(LLR) as of 31 December 2020 and provide additional 1% LLR for the incremental principal outstanding loan. In this respect, BRAC
followed the MRA guidelines. In addition, BRAC Management has taken a conservative approach and provided an additional amount of
BDT 694 crores in LLR for the period from 01 July 2020 to 30 June 2021.

Loans written off

Loans within their maturity period are classified as " Current Loans". Loans which remain outstanding after one year of their maturity
period are considered as "Late Loans". Late Loans which remain unpaid for a year are classified as "Non-Interest Bearing Loans"
(NIBL). The total amount of NIBL, which are considered bad and have no possibility of recovery, is referred to the Governing Body of
BRAC for approval to write off, generally within one year from the date when a loan is transferred to NIBL. Generally loans are written

off twice a year i.e. July and December. Any collections realized from loans previously written off are credited to the statement of
comprehensive income and expenditure.
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2.17 Accruals and provisions

Accruals are liabilities to pay for goods or services that have been received or supplied but have not been paid, invoiced or formally
agreed with the supplier, including amounts due to employees.

Provisions are recognized when BRAC has a present obligation as a result of a past event and it is probable that an outflow of
resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate of the amount can be made.
Provisions are reviewed at each statement of financial position date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.

2.18 Investments in related undertakings

Related undertakings refer to separately-established undertakings in which BRAC has significant influence and/or effective equity
interests. Details of these undertakings are disclosed in Note 5.

BRAC's investments in these undertakings are initially recorded at cost and subsequently adjusted to reflect BRAC's share of results
for each period added to or deducted from the respective investment costs, from the dates of their acquisition and to the dates of
their disposal. Distribution received from the undertakings is recognized in the statement of comprehensive income and expenditure.
Unrealized share of profit from undertakings as well as any changes in net assets in the related undertakings other than by the effect
of operating results are recognized directly in the statement of changes in capital fund. On disposal, gains or losses representing the
difference between the proceeds on disposal and the carrying value of the undertakings at the date of disposal are recognized in the
statement of comprehensive income and expenditure. Gain or losses on dilution of interest in related undertakings, representing the
difference in BRAC's share of net assets before and after the dilution concerned is also recognized in the statement of comprehensive
income and expenditure. Provision is also made for any impairment if the carrying amount of an investment exceeds its recoverable
amount. In case the share of losses from related undertakings is equal or more than the cost of investment then those losses were
not recognized.

2.19 Investment in securities and others

All investments other than investment in related undertakings are initially recognized at cost, being the fair value of the consideration
given and including acquisition charges associated with the investment.

Other long-term investments which are intended to be held to maturity, such as debentures and private debt securities, are
subsequently measured at amortized cost. Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on
acquisition, over the period to maturity. For investments carried at amortized cost, apart from the amortization process which is dealt
with through the statement of comprehensive income and expenditure, any gain or loss is recognized in the statement of income and
expenditure when the investment is disposed of or suffers a permanent diminution in value.

2.20 Accounts receivable

Accounts receivable arise principally from BRAC’s income generating activities and programme support enterprises, and are stated
net of provision for doubtful debts. An estimate is made for doubtful debts based on a review of all outstanding amounts as at the
balance sheet date. Bad debts are written off when identified.

2.21 Inventories

Retail inventories are stated at cost based on selling price less average mark-up, and other inventories are stated at cost. Cost is
determined using the weighted average basis. The cost of inventories includes expenditure incurred in acquiring the inventories and
bringing them to their existing location and condition. Provision is made for obsolete or slow moving items, to reduce their carrying
amounts to net realizable value.

2.22 Motorcycle replacement fund

Applicable donor funds are utilized for providing motorcycles to project or programme staffs, and these funds are held in a
replacement fund. The cost of providing motorcycles to staff is recovered through monthly salary deductions. Donor funds received
and utilized for the purchase of motorcycles are amortized to the statement of comprehensive income and expenditure over a period
of five years, being the average estimated useful life of the motorcycles.

2.23 Self - insurance fund

BRAC created a self-insurance fund in order to provide coverage for a variety of risks including that of hazard/natural calamity (i.e.
cyclone, flood, fire among others) to selected properties. Additionally, risk coverage related to cash loss arising out of regular
operation is also under the scope of this fund along with miscellaneous risk coverage not insured by other funds. This self-insurance
fund is based on estimates by the Governing Body and, as from 2001, by reference to the best judgment made by management.
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2.24

2.25

2.26

2.28

2.29

Employee gratuity and redundancy fund

BRAC maintains a Gratuity Scheme which is considered as a defined benefit plan. BRAC makes provisions for an Employee Gratuity
and Redundancy fund, on the basis of two months’ basic salary for each completed year’s service for each permanent employee
(based on the basic salary of the last month) and provision for earned leave for an employee maximum up to 60 days. In this respect,
Gratuity fund valuation of the retirement benefit liabilities are calculated periodically and with reference to a number of actuarial
assumptions and inputs including discount rate, rate of inflation and mortality rates.

The extent of future liabilities requiring current provisions, and the rate of provisions required in the immediate following financial
periods have been determined based on actuarial valuation carried out for 2020.

In addition, the process of formation of a funded gratuity has been taken and administrative formalities have been completed. An
actuarial valuation of the gratuity amount has been conducted in this regard. An amount of Taka 100 Crores is transferred to this
separate gratuity fund.

Employee provident fund
BRAC makes contribution to a recognized contributory provident fund for its eligible employees which is operated by a Board of
Trustees. The contribution by BRAC is 10% of the basic salary of each confirmed employees and this is equivalent to the contribution

by each eligible employee. Contributions to this fund are recognized as an expenses in the period in which the employee services are
performed.

Employee group insurance

BRAC is maintaining a group insurance policy with Guardian Life Insurance Ltd. for covering the risk of life of the employee and family
health , on a monthly fixed premium basis. This policy is to cover liabilities arising out of death and other permanent injuries suffered
by the employees. The terms of employment provide for payment in the event of death or permanent injury, of amounts ranging from

50 months for natural death, permanent injuries and 100 months for accidental death equivalent of last month basic salary. In case of
health coverage, it covers a range of medical facilities in all over the Bangladesh as well as in abroad.

Eorei )

Foreign currency transactions are converted into equivalent Taka at the ruling exchange rates on the respective dates of such
transactions.

The resulting exchange translation gains and losses are recognized in the statement of income and expenditure.

The principal exchange rates used for each respective unit of foreign currency ruling at the statement of financial position date are as
follows:

30 June

30 June 2021 2020

Taka Taka
United States Dollar (USD) 83.95 83.95
Euro 99.65 94.03
Great Britain Pound (GBP) 116.02 102.98
Canadian Dollar (CAD) 66.76 60.45
Australian Dollar (AUD) 61.85 57.40

BRAC's foreign currency denominated assets and liabilities are disclosed in Note 29.
Taxation

Income tax liabilities for the current period are measured at the amount expected to be paid to the taxation authorities in accordance
with the Income Tax Ordinance, 1984 (Amended) for activities by which BRAC generates taxable income. Management periodically
evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation
and establishes provisions where appropriate.

Borrowing costs
Borrowing costs are interest and other costs that BRAC incurs in connection with the borrowing of fund.

Borrowing costs are recognized as an expense in the period in which they are incurred except where such costs are directly
attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset as referred to note no. 2.12(f).
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2.30 |mpairment of assets

At each statement of financial position date, BRAC reviews the carrying amounts of its assets to determine whether there is any
indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, impairment is measured by comparing the carrying values of the assets with
their recoverable amounts. Recoverable amount is the higher of net selling price and value in use.

An impairment loss is recognized as an expense in the statement of comprehensive income and expenditure immediately. Reversal of
impairment losses recognized in prior years is recorded in the statement of comprehensive income and expenditure when the
impairment losses recognized for the asset no longer exists or have decreased.

2.31 FEinancial instruments
Financial instruments are recognized in the statement of financial position when BRAC has become a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument.

a) Investments in related undertakings

Investments in related undertakings are stated at cost less impairment losses. The policy for the recognition and
measurement of impairment losses is in accordance with Note 2.18.

b) Investments in securities and others

Investments in securities and others are stated at cost, subsequently adjusted for fair value or at amortized cost. The policy
for the recognition and measurement of impairment losses is in accordance with Note 2.19.

c) Receivables

Receivables are carried at anticipated realizable values. Bad debts are written off when identified and an estimate is made for
doubtful debts based on a review of all outstanding amounts as at the statement of financial position date.

d) Payables
Payables are stated at cost which is the fair value of the consideration to be paid in the future for goods and services
received.

e) Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing bank loans, overdrafts and securitized financing are recorded at the amount of proceeds received, net of
transactions costs. For borrowings made specifically for the purpose of acquiring a qualifying asset, the amount of borrowing
costs eligible for capitalization is the actual borrowing costs incurred on that borrowing during the period less any investment
income on the temporary investments of funds drawn down from that borrowing facility.

All borrowing costs are recognized as an expense in the statement of comprehensive income and expenditure in the period in
which they are incurred. The carrying values of these financial instruments approximate their fair values due to their short
term maturities.

2.32 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash and bank balances. Bank overdrafts are repayable on demand and form an integral part of
BRAC's cash management.

Cash and cash equivalents for the purposes of the statement of cash flows comprises of cash and bank balances net of bank

overdrafts, if any. Cash and bank balances include donations which are received through donor grants. By virtue of donor
agreements, the manner in which such donations are to be applied may be restricted to specific projects and/or assets.

233 Conti I

Any possible obligation that arises from past events and the existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of BRAC; or any present obligation that arises from
past events but is not recognized because:

it is not probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation or

* the amount of the obligation cannot be measured with sufficient reliability
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Contingent liabilities are not recognized but disclosed in the financial statements unless the possibility of an outflow of resources
embodying economic benefits is remote .

In respect of a number of earlier years, BRAC has received demands for additional tax from the taxation authority. These are at
different stages of appeal. Provisions have been made where considered appropriate.

Contingent assets are not recognized in the financial statements as this may result in the recognition of income which may never be
realized.

2.34 Events after the balance sheet date
Events after the statement of financial position date that provide additional information about the organization's position at the
statement of financial position date are reflected in the financial statements.
The COVID-19 outbreak continues and a significant number of infections observed from March 2021. To mitigate the risk of infections,
several measures have been taken at a country level to respond against COVID 19 pandemic. In this regard, we have taken a number
of initiatives to monitor and prevent the effects of the COVID-19 virus such as safety and health measures for our people including
encouraging for vaccination, maintaining social distancing, introducing work from home and securing the supply of materials that are
essential for the safety of our staffs.
BRAC has considered the possible impacts that may result from COVID-19 in the preparation of these financial results including the
recoverability of carrying amount of financial and non- financial assets. The assumptions relating to the possible future uncertainties in
the economic conditions because of COVID-19, BRAC has, at the date of approval of these financial results, used both internal and
external sources of information and assessed that the carrying amount of the assets will be recovered.
Since the end of reporting period there has been no material changes affecting the financial position of BRAC.

2.35 Segmental reporting
BRAC is organized into operating segments based on projects and programmes which are independently managed by the respective
program managers responsible for the performance within the operating segments.
The programme managers report directly to the management of BRAC who regularly review the segment results in order to assess
segment performance. Additional disclosures on each of these segments are shown in notes 32 and 33 respectively.

2.36 Utilization of contribution from MF surplus
MRA approved BDT 308 crores to spend for its development programme activities which include education, health, human rights &
legal aids services, water, sanitation, hygiene (WASH) and ultra poor graduation (UPG) programmes for this period.
As a whole, BRAC spent BDT 1,834 crores for its development activities which were funded by local and foreign aid, contribution from
MF surplus and other different sources.
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- Nurul Faruk Hasan & Co
Chartered Accountants
Vertex Prominent (1st Floor)
GA-16/1 Mohakhali
Dhaka 1212, Bangladesh

Tel : +88 09611002202
Web : www.deloitte.com

Annexure-A/2

Auditors' Compliance Certification on BRAC Microfinance Programme

We have audited the financial statements of BRAC for the year ended 30 June 2021. On the basis of our audit, we certify below the compliance of
BRAC with the eligibility criteria as developed based on the requirement of the Governing Body of BRAC:

Eligibility criteria Audited figures or compliance
@) Minimum loan recovery rates, computed quarterly, based on the
following:

2020-2021 2019-2020

[0} Cumulative loan collection ratio on total dues:

Actual cumulative collections 2,786,749,016,734 _ 99.84% 99.89%
Cumulative collectibles 2,791,321,491,634

(i) Loan collection ratio on current dues (on running 12- months basis):

Actual collections during the past 12 months on current dues 427,123,947

= 98.57% 99.34%
Collectible on current dues 433,310,992

(b) Liquidity ratio 27.30% 25.58%
(c) Current ratio 2.44:1 1.87:1
(d) Capital adequacy ratio 35.30% 33.23%
(e) Debt service cover ratio 1.86:1 1.95:1
(f) Rate of return on capital 12.28% 14.48%
(©)] Debt capital ratio 9:1 0.37:1 0.83:1
Dhaka, Bangladesh For Nurul Faruk Hasan & Co.
Dated: 30 December 2021 Chartered Accountants

Shamsur Rahman, FCA
Partner

Enrollment No. 941

DVC: 2112300941AS170748
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Actual provision made by BRAC:

BRAC

Microfinance Programme

Portfolio report for the year ended June 30, 2021
Review of loan classification and provisions

(i) Classification of loan and loan loss provision

Annexure-A/3

Sl. No. Particulars No of days outstanding Outstanding loan Required provision
Amount (Taka) Amount (Taka)

1 Total loan outstanding 266,150,314,810

2 Total overdue More then 1 instaliment missed 59,147,460,190

3 Regular Loans with no overdue installments 193,410,180,702 1,181,668,441

4 Watchful Loan default duration between 1 and 30 days 13,592,673,918 415,232,377

5 Sub-standard Loan default duration between 31 and 180 days 33,093,321,190 5,054,714,947

6 Doubtful Loan default duration between 181 and 365 days 10,062,374,585 4,610,818,744

7 Bad loan Loan default duration above 365 days 15,991,764,415 9,770,407,769
Total 266,150,314,810 21,032,842,277

Required provision as per MRA Policy:

Sl. No. Particulars No of days outstanding Outstanding Loan Required provision
Amount (Taka) Amount (Taka)

1 Total loan outstanding 266,150,314,810

2 Total overdue More then 1 instaliment missed 59,147,460,190

3 Regular Loans with no overdue installments 193,410,180,702 4,979,287,782

4 Watchful Loan default duration between 1 and 30 days 13,592,673,918 813,217,770

5 Sub-standard Loan default duration between 31 and 180 days 33,093,321,190 910,109,670

6 Doubtful Loan default duration between 181 and 365 days 10,062,374,585 936,114,091

7 Bad loan Loan default duration above 365 days 15,991,764,415 6,452,601,951
Total 266,150,314,810 14,091,331,264
(i) Loan Loss Provision LLR status of the MFI

Particulars Amount in (Taka) I

Actual Provision made by BRAC:
Required provision as per MRA Policy:

Excess provision

Disclosure on written off Loan:

Loan written off balance 01 July 2020
Loan written off during the year 2020-2021
Written off Loan recovered during the year 2020-2021

Loan written off balance 30 June 2021

ANNUAL REPORT 2021

21,082,842,277
14,091,331,264

6,941,511,013

19,800,497,482
5,122,079,450
(118,790,618)

24,803,786,314




Annexure-A/3 (Contd.)
Portfolio report for the year ended June 30, 2021 (Contd.)

(ii) Loan Loss Provision (LLP) status of the PO

Particulars Taka
Actual provision made by BRAC 21,032,842,277
Required provision as per MRA Policy 14,091,331,264
Excess/shortfall of provision 6,941,511,013

Disclosure on written off loan:

Loan written off balance 01 July 2020 19,800,497,482
Loan written off during the year 2020-2021 5,122,079,450
Written off loan recovered during the year 2020-2021 (118,790,618)
Loan written off balance 30 June 2021 24,803,786,314
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Portfolio report for the year ended June 30, 2021 (Contd.)

(iii) Loan Operational Report

Annexure-A/3 (Contd.)

Sl No. Particulars 2020-2021 2019-2020

1 Financial service product:

Loan product:

PKSF funded loan

Loan from commercial bank 40,047,229,629 51,513,201,059

Other loan short term (Bank Overdraft) 165,841,886 31,171,194,721

Savings product:

Compulsory savings 66,318,467,641 66,272,149,337

Voluntary savings 15,807,905,031 13,331,872,445

Term deposit 53,383,624,795 27,431,774,373
2 Number of branches 2,280 2,276

2020-2021 2019-2020
Male Female Total Male Female Total

3 Number of samities 21,107 264,182 285,289 19,796 265,460 285,256
4 Number of members 1,370,240 7,103,215 8,473,455 1,158,529 6,282,010 7,440,539
5 Number of borrowers 647,673 6,005,795 6,653,468 898,655 5,390,581 6,289,236
6 Number of staff 15,603 8,461 24,064 15,860 8,264 24,124

Amount (Taka) of loan outstanding with
7 samiti members 266,150,314,810 265,798,665,693
8 Member: borrower 1.27:1 1.18:1
9 Average loan size 75,551 71,485

Dhaka, Bangladesh
Dated: 30 December 2021

ANNUAL REPORT 2021

For Nurul Faruk Hasan & Co

Chartered Accountal

nts

Shamsur Rahman, FCA

Partner
Enroliment No. 941

DVC: 2112300941AS170748




Financial year : 2020-2021
Name of Organization : BRAC

License No. 00488-00186-00065

BRAC
Microfinance Programme
Budget Variance Report

Annexure-A/6

Description 2020-2021 Variance
Projected Actual %

1. New area coverage

District - -

Upazilla - -

Union - -

Village - -

2. Branch opening 30 4 -87%
3. Group/Samity formation 200 33 -84%
4. Add new member 1,800,000 2,058,332 14%
5. Add new borrower 500,000 1,969,760 294%
6. Staff recruitment 2,500 942 -62%
7. Deposits collection 72,080,584,170 79,175,373,358 10%
8. Refund deposit 37,528,585,707 50,701,172,046 35%
9. Loan recovery 360,479,194,000 431,274,395,196 20%
10. Loan disbursement 437,398,407,001 431,626,044,313 -1%
11. Loan borrowing 52,675,558,458 48,030,907,005 -9%
12. Loan returns 36,597,938,534 90,502,231,270 147%
13. Total income 68,587,905,258 67,679,519,581 -1%
14. Total expenditure 49,460,922,541 54,794,547,966 11%

Description

Position as on 30th June 2021

1. Area coverage

District 64
Upazilla 532
Union 5,215
Village 69,421

. Number of branch 2,280
. Number of group 285,289
. Number of member 8,473,455
. Number of borrower 6,653,468

33,344

. Deposit balance

135,509,997,467

. Principal loan outstanding

266,150,314,810

. Loan outstanding

271,869,452,253

2
3
4
5
6. Manpower
7
8
9
1

0. Cumulative surplus

109,806,127,813
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BRAC
Microfinance Programme
Budget Variance Report

Financial Year : 2020-2021

Annexure-A/6 (Contd.)

Sl. No. Particulars - 2020-2021 - Note
Projected Actual Variance
1 Microfinance loan recovery
RMC 53,694,366,914 70,337,100,526 31% 1
UMC 16,677,603,656 18,356,475,398 10%
ME 128,274,089,753 189,352,970,461 48%
Seasonal 3,754,413,076 1,251,560,263 -67%
Livestock 32,784,519,073 78,170,701,334 138%
Agriculture 102,282,330,026 19,466,448,411 -81%
Others 23,011,871,502 54,339,138,803 136%
Total 360,479,194,000 431,274,395,196 20%
2 Fund collection
Savings collection
Force savings 65,054,473,669 38,469,159,662 -41% 2
Voluntary savings 4,668,675,393 7,450,636,884 60%
Fixed deposit 2,357,435,108 33,255,576,812 1311%
Total 72,080,584,170 79,175,373,358 10%
Loan receive
2. Bank loan | 52,675,558,458 48,030,907,005 -9% 3
3 Utilization of fund
Loan disbursement
RMC disbursement 65,151,696,000 78,384,235,989 20% 4
UMC disbursement 20,236,278,000 17,602,291,217 -13%
ME disbursement 155,645,272,000 173,044,897,702 11%
Seasonal disbursement 4,555,531,000 468,822,000 -90%
Livestock disbursement 39,780,095,000 48,101,751,232 21%
Agriculture disbursement 124,107,380,000 24,465,990,942 -80%
Others disbursement 27,922,155,000 89,558,055,231 221%
Total: 437,398,407,001 431,626,044,313 -1%
Savings returns
Force savings 30,278,940,252 38,433,381,424 27% 5
Voluntary savings 4,128,458,429 4,973,684,297 20%
Fixed deposit 3,121,187,026 7,294,106,325 134%
Total: 37,528,585,707 50,701,172,046 35%
Loan repayment
Bank loan 36,597,938,534 90,502,231,270 147% 6
Total 36,597,938,534 90,502,231,270 147%
4 Fixed assets addition
Land development 221,662,400 1,839,627 -99% 7
Building construction 277,078,000 488,821,246 76%
Furniture and fixtures 498,740,400 33,780,699 -93%
Office equipment 55,415,600 167,949,987 203%
Computer and accessories 55,415,600 137,278,328 148%
Vehicles - -
Total 1,108,312,000 829,669,887 -25%
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Income

1. Service charge 67,152,899,082 66,042,195,946 -2% 8

2. Interest on investment 1,188,315,352 1,463,395,497 23%

3. Entry fees 15,511,715 18,247,651 18%

4. Recovery of right off loan 142,700,414 118,790,618 -17%

Other income 88,478,696 36,889,869 -58%
Total 68,587,905,258 67,679,519,581 -1%

Expenditure :

Financial expenditure:

5. Savings interest 6,806,577,996 9,834,740,608 44% 9

6. Interest on bank loan 10,782,106,932 5,158,501,515 -52%

Total financial expenditure 17,588,684,928 14,993,242,123 -15%

General and administrative expenses:

7. Salary and allowances

Basic pay 9,336,470,516 9,370,251,410 0% 10

House rent allowance 5,601,882,310 5,622,150,846 0%

Medical allowance 1,867,294,103 1,874,050,282 0%

Conveyance allowance 1,867,294,103 1,874,050,282 0%
Total: 18,672,941,032 18,740,502,820 0%

8. Office rent 507,771,222 465,407,007 -8%

9. Printing and stationeries 450,336,519 367,195,308 -18%

10. Travel expenses

Domestic 1,251,587,026 1,640,385,559 31%

11. Repairs and maintenance

Office building 914,719,984 1,026,404,861 12%

12. Fuel expenses

Gas, Electric and water bill 417,132,609 441,738,756 6%

13. Entertainment and general expenses 324,795,509 1,228,787,050 278%

14. Training expense

Local training 363,165,336 32,273,985 -91%
Total 4,229,508,205 5,202,192,526 23%

15. Others operational expense

Member death benefits - 5,000

Data processing expenses 635,806,169 508,738,818 -20%

16. Audit Fees 2,415,000 2,300,000 -5%

17. Depreciation 342,020,973 271,755,733 -21%

Total operational expenses 23,882,691,379 24,725,494,897 4%

18. Loan loss provision 7,989,546,235 15,075,810,946 89% 11

19. Net surplus 19,126,982,716 12,884,971,615 -33%

20. Transfer to various fund 2.465,695,458 3,080,000,000 25%

Reserve fund 1,912,698,272 1,288,497,162 -33%
Total 4,378,393,730 4,368,497,162 0%

Extensive supervision and collection through digital financial service resulted in higher loan recovery than the
budget during this unrest pandemic period.

The high response on the savings campaign and introduction of alternate collection tool has driven the savings
collection higher than the budget.

During the COVID-19 pandemic, slow disbursement resulted in limited bank loan utilization.
Due to the economic downturn, loan disbursement was slightly decreased than the budget.

Savings return was higher than the budget due to the COVID-19 pandemic.
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6 Repayment of overdraft balance, the high response on savings campaign and lower loan disbursement made the
bank loan dependency lower and bank loan repayment higher than the budget.

7 The economic downturn, limited expansion of branches resulted lower investment in fixed assets than the budget
whereas replacement and new purchase of office equipment, computer and accessories surpass the budget in
few segment.

8 Slow disbursement during the pandemic resulted in lower service charge/total income than the budget.

9 Financial expenditure decreased, mostly due to decreased Bank Loan /overdraft position and revised interest
rate. On the other hand, interest on savings increased due to the increase of term deposit.

10  Total operational expenditure is slightly increased than the budgeted amount driven by the charge related to the
initiation of digital financial service.

11 The upsurge COVID-19 made the Loan Loss Provision higher than the budget.
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Want to file a complaint on a safeguarding issue?

For complaints related to sexual harassment:

9 01729071546

@ complaint.shrc@brac.net

For other complaints:
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